
CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

September 4, 2007 
 
6:30 PM    Work Study Caucus Session Discussion 
 

• Pending agenda items 
 
7:00 PM    Business Meeting 
 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Roll Call  
 

CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
Items listed on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine in nature and will be enacted 

by one motion. Prior to asking for a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, the mayor will 

ask if anyone desires to remove an item from the Consent Agenda for public discussion. No 

separate discussion of these items will occur unless a Council Member requests the item to be 

removed from the Consent Agenda. If an item is removed from the Consent Agenda, it will be 

considered elsewhere on the agenda for this meeting.   

 
Minutes of the regular meeting August 21, 2007 
 
Police Department Report for the month of July, 2007 
 
Payroll and Bills for the last half of August, 2007  
 
PRESENTATIONS, PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 
This portion of the City Council meeting is reserved for persons who desire to address the 

Council. The Illinois Open Meeting Act mandates that the City Council may NOT take action 

on comments received on matters that have not been identified on this agenda, but the Council 

may direct staff to address the topic or refer the matter for action on the agenda for another 

meeting. Persons addressing the Council are requested to limit their presentations to three 

minutes and to avoid repetitious comments. 

 

NEW BUSINESS: 
 
Motion – Approve Council Decision Request 2007-786: Authorizing the Chief of Police to 

purchase three 2007 Chevrolet Impala Administrative Sedans from Miles 
Chevrolet, Inc., Decatur, Illinois for a total of $58,350.00. (White) 

 



Motion – Adopt Resolution 2007-2713: Authorizing the additional $25,000 of MFT funds 
for the LAPP [Local Agency Pavement Preservation] Project [05-00128-00-RS]. 
(McKenzie) 

 
Motion – Adopt Resolution 2007-2714: Authorizing the additional $506.32 of MFT funds 

for the PCC [Portland Cement Concrete] Sidewalk Project [05-00133-00-SW]. 
(McKenzie) 

 
Motion – Approve Council Decision Request 2007-787: Authorizing the mayor to sign a 

contract extending the 2007 MFT Street Maintenance unit prices for oil and 
chipping from NeCo Asphalt of Charleston in the amount of $26,853 for oil and 
chipping in commercial alleys. (McKenzie) 

 
Motion – Approve Council Decision Request 2007-788: Appointing Captain Jeffrey M. 

Branson to the position of Deputy Police Chief, effective September 15, 2007. 
(White) 

 
Motion – Approve Council Decision Request 2007-789: Approving the promotion of Lt. 

Adam J. Weinstock to the rank of Police Captain, effective September 15, 2007. 
(White) 

 
Motion – Approve Council Decision Request 2007-790: Approving the promotion of Sgt. 

Gary Kepley to the rank of Police Lieutenant, effective September 15, 2007. 
(White) 

 
Motion – Approve Council Decision Request 2007-791: Accepting the recommendation of 

the Mid-town Incentive Review Committee for a project requested by Keith 
Summers for an annual subsidy grant not to exceed $80,000 with a term of ten 
years for the relocation of Little Mexico at 1810 Charleston Avenue. (White) 

 
Motion – Adopt Special Ordinance 2007-1243: Approving the Walton Subdivision plat 

located at 101 Dettro Drive, City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois. Walmart – 
Petitioner (White) 

 
Motion – Adopt Ordinance 2007-5237: Approving a lease purchase agreement with the 

First Mid-Illinois Bank & Trust to finance $150,000 over a term of five years to 
acquire vehicles and equipment for the Public Works and Police Department. 
(Cline) [Vactor trucks, endloaders, pickups, unmarked police cars] 

 
Motion – Adopt Special Ordinance 2007-1244: Ratifying the employment agreement of 

David L. Griffith for the position of Police Chief. (White) 
 
Adjourn.  
 
 
 



UNAPPROVED MINUTES: 
 The City Council of the City of Mattoon held a regular meeting in the Council Chambers 
at City Hall on August 21, 2007 after the 6:30 p.m. caucus session, where the Council discussed 
pending agenda items and heard concerns over problems with boiler slag in Lane Acres South. 
 
 Mayor White presiding. 
 
 Mayor White led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 The following members of the Council answered roll call in person:  YEA Commissioner 
David Cline, YEA Commissioner Randy Ervin, YEA Commissioner Joseph McKenzie, YEA 
Commissioner David Schilling, YEA Mayor Charles E. White.   
 
 Also in attendance in person were City personnel:  City Administrator Alan Gilmore, 
City Attorney/Treasurer J. Preston Owen, Public Works Director David Wortman, Fire Chief 
Mike Chism, Assistant Chief Andy Adair, Community Development Coordinator Kyle Gill, 
Police Chief Larry Metzelaars, Deputy Chief David Griffith, Water Treatment Plant Operator 
Jim Lang and City Clerk Susan J. O’Brien. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Items listed on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine in nature and will be enacted by 

one motion.  Prior to asking for a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, the mayor will ask if 

anyone desires to remove an item from the Consent Agenda for public discussion.  No separate 

discussion of these items will occur unless a Council Member requests the item to be removed 

from the Consent Agenda.  If an item is removed from the Consent Agenda, it will be considered 

elsewhere on the agenda for this meeting. 

 
 Mayor White seconded by Commissioner Schilling moved to approve the consent agenda 
consisting of:  minutes of the regular meeting August 7, 2007 and payroll and bills for the first 
half of August, 2007 and financial reports.  
 

  Bills & Payroll for the first half of August  

        
  General Fund      
Payroll         $      277,575.83  

Bills         $      235,756.44  

      Total   $      513,332.27  

  Hotel Tax Fund      

Payroll         $         3,130.95  

Bills         $         5,426.16  
      Total   $         8,557.11  
  Festival Management     

Bills        $         9,647.91  
      Total  $         9,647.91  

  
Insurance & Tort 
Judgment    

Bills         $         2,472.80  



      Total   $         2,472.80  
  Capital Project Fund    

Bills         $         8,885.70  
      Total   $         8,885.70  
        
  Water Fund     
Payroll         $        31,100.02  

Bills         $      159,071.34  
      Total   $      190,171.36  
        

  Sewer Fund     

Payroll         $        25,649.77  

Bills         $        99,534.24  

      Total   $      125,184.01  

        
  Cemetery Fund      
Payroll         $         5,213.31  

Bills         $        11,413.04  
      Total   $        16,626.35  
  Health Insurance      

Bills         $        92,157.66  
      Total   $        92,157.66  
        

  Motor Fuel Tax Fund    

Bills         $      190,747.17  
      Total   $      190,747.17  

 
 Mayor White declared the motion to approve the consent agenda carried by the following 
vote:  YEA Commissioner Cline, YEA Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, 
YEA Commissioner Schilling, YEA Mayor White. 
 
PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS, PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 
This portion of the City Council meeting is reserved for persons who desire to address the 

Council. The Illinois Open Meeting Act mandates that the City Council may NOT take action on 

comments received on matters that have not been identified on this agenda, but the Council may 

direct staff to address the topic or refer the matter for action on the agenda for another meeting. 

Persons addressing the Council are requested to limit their presentations to three minutes and to 

avoid repetitious comments. 

 

 Commissioner Schilling appreciated the Lane Acres South residents for attending the 
meeting, noted the staff had been attempting to rectify the situation, and cautioned the residents 
with dust problems when applying oil and chip to roads. 
 Director Wortman announced an unscheduled retirement of an employee at the Water 
Treatment Plant, noted overtime would commence, and requested affirmation for advertising the 
position.  There were no objections from the Council. 
 
 



NEW BUSINESS  
 Commissioner Ervin seconded by Commissioner McKenzie moved to approve Council 
Decision Request 2007-782, approving the promotion of Fred Reynolds from probationary 
fireman to full-time status, effective August 17, 2007. 
 
 Mayor White opened the floor for discussion.  No discussion 
 
 Mayor White declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA Commissioner 
Cline, YEA Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA Commissioner 
Schilling, YEA Mayor White. 
 
 Commissioner Ervin seconded by Commissioner Cline moved to approve Council 
Decision Request 2007-783, approving the promotion of Adam Whalin from probationary 
fireman to full-time status, effective August 19, 2007.  
 
 Mayor White declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA Commissioner 
Cline, YEA Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA Commissioner 
Schilling, YEA Mayor White.  
 
 Commissioner Schilling seconded by Commissioner Ervin moved to adopt Resolution 
2007-2708, authorizing the Mayor to execute agreements and amendments for implementation of 
Federal Transit Administration projects on behalf of the City of Mattoon, Illinois. [Mattoon 
Depot] 
 

 

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

RESOLUTION 2007-2708 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT 

 
BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Mattoon, Illinois does hereby authorize the Charles 

E. White, Mayor to execute agreements and amendments, as necessary to implement Federal 
Transit Administration projects on behalf of the City of Mattoon, Illinois. 
 

I certify that the above resolution was adopted by City of Mattoon, Illinois on August 21, 
2007. 
 
SIGNED:     WITNESSETH: 
 
/s/ Charles E. White    /s/ Susan J. O’Brien     
(Signature)     (Signature)  
 
 
Mayor      City Clerk      
(Title)      (Title) 
 
 



8/22/07      8/22/07      
(Date)      (Date) 
 
 Mayor White opened the floor for discussion.  No discussion.  
 
 Mayor White declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA Commissioner 
Cline, YEA Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA Commissioner 
Schilling, YEA Mayor White.  
 
 Commissioner Schilling seconded by Commissioner McKenzie moved to adopt 
Resolution 2007-2709, authorizing the filing of applications with the Federal Transit 
Administration for Federal transportation assistance.  [Mattoon Depot] 
 

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

RESOLUTION 2007-2709 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF APPLICATIONS WITH THE 
FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION, AN OPERATING ADMINISTRATION OF 

THE UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, FOR FEDERAL 
TRANSPORTATION ASSISTANCE AUTHORIZED BY 49 U.S.C. CHAPTER 53, TITLE 

23 UNITED STATES CODE, AND OTHER FEDERAL STATUTES ADMINISTERED 
BY THE FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION. 

WHEREAS, the Federal Transportation Administrator has been delegated authority to award 
Federal financial assistance for a transportation project; 

WHEREAS, the grant or cooperative agreement for Federal financial assistance will impose 
certain obligations upon the Applicant, and may require the Applicant to provide the local share 
of the project cost; 

WHEREAS, the Applicant has or will provide all annual certifications and assurances to the 
Federal Transit Administration required for the project; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

1. That the Mayor or his designee is authorized to execute and file an application for Federal 
assistance on behalf of the City of Mattoon, Illinois with the Federal Transit Administration for 
Federal assistance authorized by 49 U.S.C. chapter 53, Title 23, United States Code, or other 
Federal statutes authorizing a project administered by the Federal Transit Administration.  

2. That the Mayor or his designee is authorized to execute and file with its applications the 
annual certifications and assurances and other documents the Federal Transportation 
Administration requires before awarding a Federal assistance grant or cooperative agreement. 

3. That Mayor or his designee is authorized to execute grant and cooperative agreements with the 
Federal Transit Administration on behalf of the City of Mattoon, Illinois. 



Upon motion by Commissioner Schilling seconded by Commissioner McKenzie adopted this  
21st day of August, 2007, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   Commissioner Cline, Commissioner Ervin,  
   Commissioner McKenzie, Commissioner Schilling,  
   Mayor White 
NAYS (Names):  None 
ABSENT (Names): None 
 
Approved this 21st day of August, 2007.  
 
      /s/ Charles E. White  
      Charles E. White, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM:    
 
   
/s/ Susan J. O’Brien    /s/ J. Preston Owen 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney   
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on August 22, 2007.  
 
 Mayor White opened the floor for discussion.   No discussion. 
 
 Mayor White declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA Commissioner 
Cline, YEA Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA Commissioner 
Schilling, YEA Mayor White. 
 
 Commissioner Cline seconded by Commissioner Schilling moved to adopt Resolution 
2007-2710, evidencing the intention of the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois, to issue 
Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds and related matters.  [First-Time Homebuyers 
Assistance] 
 

 

City of Mattoon, Illinois 
RESOLUTION NO. 2007-2710 

RESOLUTION evidencing the intention of the City of Mattoon, 

Coles County, Illinois, to issue Single Family Mortgage Revenue 

Bonds and related matters. 

WHEREAS, the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois (the “Issuer”) is a municipality 
under Section 6(a) of Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois; and 

WHEREAS, the availability of decent, safe and sanitary housing that most people can 
afford is essential to retain and increase industrial and commercial activities and relieve 
conditions of unemployment in the City of Mattoon, Illinois; and 



WHEREAS, the shortage of decent, safe and sanitary housing that most people can afford 
is not transitory and self-curing; the cost of financing such housing is a major and substantial 
factor affecting the supply and cost of decent, safe and sanitary housing built by private 
enterprise; and the revenue bonds provided for in this resolution will substantially lower the cost 
of such financing; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Constitution and the laws of the State of Illinois, and 
particularly the Municipal Housing Finance Law, 65 Illinois Compiled Statutes 2006, 
5/11-74.5-1 et seq., as supplemented and amended (the “Act”), the City Council of the Issuer has 
the power to issue its revenue bonds to aid in financing the cost of mortgage loans for one to four 
family residences in the City of Mattoon, Illinois; and 

WHEREAS, it is now considered to be necessary and desirable and in the public interest of 
the residents of the City of Mattoon, Illinois, for such revenue bonds to be issued in an amount 
not to exceed $500,000,000 in each of the next three (3) years, for the purpose of financing 
mortgage loans to low and moderate income persons for one to four family residences in the City 
of Mattoon, Illinois; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Constitution and the laws of the State of Illinois, and 
particularly Section 10 of Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois and 
5 Illinois Complied Statutes 2006, 220/1 et seq., as supplemented and amended (the 
“Intergovernmental Cooperation Act”), public agencies may exercise and enjoy with any other 
public agency in the State of Illinois any power, privilege or authority which may be exercised 
by such public agency individually, and pursuant to the Act, one or more public agencies 
(whether or not any of them are home rule units) may join together or cooperate with one another 
in the exercise, either jointly or otherwise, of any one or more of the powers conferred by the Act 
or other enabling acts or powers pursuant to a written agreement, and, accordingly, the Issuer has 
previously entered into an Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement (the “Cooperation 

Agreement”) dated as of April 1, 2005, by and among the Issuer and certain other units of local 
government named therein (the “Units”), as from time to time supplemented and amended, to 
provide for the joint issuance of such revenue bonds to aid in providing an adequate supply of 
residential housing in such Units (the “Program”); 

NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the City Council of the City of Mattoon, Coles 
County, Illinois, as follows: 

 SECTION 1. That, in order to provide decent, safe and sanitary housing that persons of 
low and moderate income in the City of Mattoon, Illinois, can afford, with the resulting public 
benefits expected to flow therefrom, it is deemed necessary and desirable for revenue bonds in an 
aggregate principal amount not to exceed $500,000,000 to be issued in each of the next three (3) 
years (the “Bonds”), for the purpose of financing mortgage loans to persons of low and moderate 
income for one to four family residences located in the City of Mattoon, Illinois. 

 SECTION 2. That the form, terms and provisions of the Cooperation Agreement be, and 
they are hereby in all respects affirmed. 

 SECTION 3. That the Issuer is hereby authorized to apply for a volume cap allocation for 
calendar years 2008, 2009 and 2010 for the issuance of the Bonds, which volume cap, if granted, 



will be allocated to the issuance of the Bonds upon the written direction of the Mayor of the 
Issuer who is hereby authorized to execute any such written direction. 

 SECTION 4. That the Issuer hereby agrees to work with Stern Brothers & Co. to 
underwrite the Bonds and with Chapman and Cutler LLP, as Bond Counsel, in connection with 
the issuance of the Bonds during calendar years 2008, 2009 and 2010. 

 SECTION 5. That the Mayor, the City Clerk and all other proper officers, officials, 
agents and employees of the Issuer are hereby authorized, empowered and directed to do all such 
acts and things and to execute all such documents and certificates as may be necessary to further 
the purposes and intent of this resolution, including without limitation to obtain an allocation of 
unified volume cap. 

 SECTION 6. That the provisions of this resolution are hereby declared to be separable, 
and if any section, phrase or provision of this resolution shall for any reason be declared to be 
invalid, such declaration shall not affect the remainder of the sections, phrases and provisions of 
this resolution. 

 SECTION 7. That all ordinances, resolutions or orders, or parts thereof, in conflict 
herewith are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby superseded; and that this resolution shall be in 
full force and effect upon its adoption and approval. 

Presented, passed, approved and recorded this 21st day of August, 2007. 

 
 /s/ Charles E. White 
      Mayor 

[SEAL] 
 
ATTEST: 
 
/s/ Susan J. O’Brien 
City Clerk 
 
Ayes:  Commissioner Cline, Commissioner Ervin,  
            Commissioner McKenzie, Commissioner Schilling, Mayor White 
 
Nays:  None 
 
Absent or Not Voting:  None 
 
 Mayor White opened the floor for discussion.  No discussion. 
 
 Mayor White declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA Commissioner 
Cline, YEA Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA Commissioner 
Schilling, YEA Mayor White. 
 
 Mayor White seconded by Commissioner Cline moved to adopt Resolution 2007-2711, 
authorizing an amendment to the 2006/2007 Technical Assistance agreement for an additional 



amount of $12,000 for LUCA (Local Update of Census Addresses) project and fieldwork.  
 

 
CITY OF MATTOON 

RESOLUTION NO. 2007-2711 
 

RESOLUTION TO AMEND CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT FOR 
TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE SERVICES WITH THE COLES COUNTY REGIONAL 

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Mattoon selected the Coles County Regional Planning and 
Development Commission to provide certain Technical Assistance Services to the City from 
December 1, 2006 to November 30, 2007; and 
 

WHEREAS, it the desire of the City of Mattoon to engage the Commission under said 
TA Contractual Agreement to provide special assistance (Local Update of Census Addresses – 
L.U.C.A.) in preparation of the 2010 U.S. Census and,  

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the “Scope of Work” section of said TA 

Contractual Agreement to authorize said Commission to provide such special assistance, and,  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has examined the amended contract agreement, “scope of 
work” section, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference and entitled 
"Technical Assistance Agreement Amendment # 2  between the City of Mattoon IL and the 
Coles County Regional Planning and Development Commission," and finds said contract 
agreement to be acceptable, 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mattoon, 
Illinois, that the City enter into and execute said Contract Agreement Amendment with the Coles 
County Regional Planning and Development Commission.  The Mayor is authorized to execute 
said Agreement. 
 

Presented, Passed and Adopted at a regular meeting of the Mattoon City Council this  
21st day of  August, 2007.  
 
     AYE  NAY  ABSENT 
Mayor: Charles E. White      X 

 
City Council 
  David Cline      X 
  Randy Ervin       X 
  Joseph McKenzie      X 
  David Schilling                X 
ATTEST:                           APPROVED:                   
 
/s/ Susan J. O’Brien             /s/ Charles E. White     
City Clerk                  Mayor 
(SEAL) 
 



 Mayor White opened the floor for discussion.  No discussion. 
 
 Mayor White declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA Commissioner 
Cline, YEA Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA Commissioner 
Schilling, YEA Mayor White.  
 

 Commissioner McKenzie seconded by Commissioner Schilling moved to adopt 
Resolution 2007-2712, authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to sign an AmerenCIPS Request 
for Street Lighting Additions, Removals, and Replacement for the installation of a street light 
located at 6709 North Country Club Road.  
 

 
CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

RESOLUTION 2007-2712 
AMEREN CIPS 

REQUEST FOR STREET LIGHTING ADDITIONS, 
REMOVALS AND REPLACEMENTS 

 
Municipality: City of Mattoon 
Address: 208 N 19th St. 
Contact Name: 1T - I Chris Hartbank 
Telephone No: 217-235-5171 
 
Mayor/President /s/ Charles E. White    Date:  8/21/07 
Clerk  /s/ Susan J. O’Brien      Date:  8/21/07 
 
Please make the following changes to street and traffic lighting facilities and adjust Ameren 
billing as shown below. The change in service is requested pursuant to the provisions of the 
Company’s Rate 11 - Street and Traffic Lighting Service and General Terms and Conditions. 
 

Location Insta
ll or 
Rem
ove  

Number 
of Units 

Size & 
Type of 
Unit 

Customer 
or 
Company 
owned 
Size & 
Type of 
Unit 

Monthl
y Price  

Total  Install or 
Removed 
Billing Date 
(Ameren use 
Only) 

6709 N Country 
Club Rd  

Insta
ll 

1  250 W 
HPS 
Area 
Light  

Company  $3.56 $3.56  

        

     Total $3.56  

 
Total Adjustment to Monthly Billing - Subject to Ameren Verification (excluding applicable tax) 
$ 3.56 
 
Remarks: The cost for the electricity going through this light will be an average of $11.70 month. 
$3.56 per month  



charge for the fixture. A one time up front charge of $2500.00 for the transformer 
 
For Ameren Use Only 
DWA/DOJM/JOB# 2Her260222 J4 e       Completed By: ___________________ 
          New Monthly Billing Total: 
               By: 
 
cc: Rates Public Affairs 
Operating Center 
 
 Mayor White opened the floor for discussion.  No discussion. 
 
 Mayor White declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA Commissioner 
Cline, YEA Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA Commissioner 
Schilling, YEA Mayor White.  
 

 Mayor White seconded by Commissioner McKenzie moved to approve Council Decision 
Request 2007-784, approving a home occupation permit at 905 Hayes Avenue for sale of mail-
order legal firearms and transfer documentation by Jimmy R. Caldwell, who may become a 
licensed dealer at this location if the use is in compliance with the zoning code.  
 
 Mayor White opened the floor for discussion.  No discussion. 
 
 Mayor White declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA Commissioner 
Cline, YEA Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA Commissioner 
Schilling, YEA Mayor White. 
 

 Commissioner Schilling seconded by Commissioner Ervin moved to approve Council 
Decision Request 2007-785, authorizing the Mayor to sign the attached Shelby Electric 
Cooperative Right-of-Way Easement for the placement of a utility pole on the south side of 
County Road 975 North just west of the Lake Mattoon beach.  
 
 Mayor White opened the floor for discussion.  No discussion. 
 
 Mayor White declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA Commissioner 
Cline, YEA Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA Commissioner 
Schilling, YEA Mayor White. 
 
 Mayor White seconded by Commissioner Cline moved to adopt Special Ordinance 2007-
1242, ratifying the appointment of David Griffith to the Police Chief position upon the 
retirement of Police Chief Metzelaars.  
 

 
CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

 
SPECIAL ORDINANCE NO. 2007-1242 

 



AN ORDINANCE RATIFYING THE APPOINTMENT OF 
DAVID L. GRIFFITH TO THE POLICE CHIEF POSITION  

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Mattoon as follows: 
 
Section 1. The City Council hereby ratifies the City Administrator’s appointment of David L. 
Griffith to the position of Police Chief effective upon the completion of retiring Police Chief 
Larry Metzelaars’ final duty shift on September 14, 2007. 
 
Section 2.  This appointment is contingent upon the City Council ratifying an Employment 
Agreement with David L. Griffith for the position of Police Chief.   
 
Section 3. This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and approval 
by the City Council.  
 
Section 4. This ordinance shall be effective upon its approval as provided by law. 
 
Upon motion by Mayor White, seconded by Commissioner Cline, adopted this 21st day of  
August, 2007, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   Commissioner Cline, Commissioner Ervin,  
   Commissioner McKenzie, Commissioner Schilling 
   Mayor White 
NAYS (Names):  None 
ABSENT (Names):   None 
 
Approved this 21st day of August, 2007. 
 

/s/ Charles E. White 
      Charles E. White, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM:    
  
/s/ Susan J. O’Brien    /s/ J. Preston Owen 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney             

Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on August 22, 2007. 
 
 Mayor White opened the floor for discussion.  No discussion.  
 
 Mayor White declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA Commissioner 
Cline, YEA Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA Commissioner 
Schilling, YEA Mayor White. 
 
 Mayor White seconded by Commissioner Ervin moved to recess to closed session at 7:14 
p.m. pursuant to the Illinois Open Meetings Act for the purpose of considering the employment, 
performance or dismissal of employees of the municipality (5 ILCS 120(2)(c)(1)). 
 



 Mayor White opened the floor for discussion.  No discussion.  
 
 Mayor White declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA Commissioner 
Cline, YEA Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA Commissioner 
Schilling, YEA Mayor White.  
 
 Council reconvened at 7:47 p.m. 
 
 Attorney/Treasurer Owen announced the governor had signed the bill [HB1670] allowing 
two commissioners to discuss city business without violating the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 Mayor White seconded by Commissioner Ervin moved to adjourned at 7:51 p.m. 
 
 Mayor White declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA Commissioner 
Cline, YEA Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA Commissioner 
Schilling, YEA Mayor White.  
 
        /s/ Susan J. O’Brien  
        City Clerk  





BILLS & PAYROLL: 

 



CITY OF MATTOON

8-24-07 PAYROLL

8-4-07/8-17-07

G/L ACCOUNT ACCOUNT NAME AMOUNT

CITY COUNCIL 110 5110-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,476.91

CITY CLERK 110 5120-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 4,721.81

110 5120-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 69.16

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 110 5130-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,852.31

110 5130-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 316.92

FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION 110 5150-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,030.12

110 5150-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 109.62

LEGAL SERVICES 110 5160-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,021.66

110 5160-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 329.5

COMPUTER INFO SYSTEMS 110 5170-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 3,699.10

PLANNING & ZONING 110 5180-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,517.71

110 5180-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 119.93

POLICE ADMINISTRATION 110 5211-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 9,557.79

CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION 110 5212-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 6,489.38

110 5212-113 OVERTIME 130.54

PATROL 110 5213-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 67,982.04

110 5213-113 OVERTIME 1,822.03

K-9 SERVICE 110 5214-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,040.43

POLICE RECORDS 110 5216-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 3,878.64

TRAFFIC CONTROL 110 5220-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 30

COMMUNICATION SERVICES 110 5222-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 7,772.01

SCHOOL RESOURCE PROGRAM 110 5227-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,060.05

110 5227-113 OVERTIME 463.52

FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN 110 5241-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 64,690.74

110 5241-113 OVERTIME 1,886.19

110 5241-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 13,470.97

CODE ENFORCEMENT ADMIN 110 5261-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 3,249.72

110 5261-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 119.95

PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN 110 5310-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 3,929.19

110 5310-113 OVERTIME 90.96

110 5310-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 656.13

STREETS 110 5320-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 29,807.37

110 5320-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES 980

110 5320-113 OVERTIME 2,863.10

110 5320-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 3,658.35

YARD WASTE COLLECTION 110 5335-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES 1,063.00

CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION 110 5370-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 3,127.89

110 5370-112 SALARIES OF TEMP. EMPLOYEES 840

110 5370-113 OVERTIME 408.25

CUSTODIAL SERVICES 110 5381-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,617.37

110 5381-113 OVERTIME 61.91

110 5381-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 735.07

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 110 5390-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,887.36

110 5390-113 OVERTIME 68.89

PARK ADMINISTRATION 110 5511-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 6,567.45

110 5511-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES 3,128.00

110 5511-113 OVERTIME 1,194.52

110 5511-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 326.74



CITY OF MATTOON

8-24-07 PAYROLL

8-4-07/8-17-07
LAKE ADMINISTRATION 110 5512-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,896.31

110 5512-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES 2,103.75

110 5512-113 OVERTIME 615.58

*** FUND 110 TOTALS *** 272,535.94

HOTEL TAX ADMINISTRATION 122 5653-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,842.95

*** FUND 122 TOTALS *** 1,842.95

WATER TREATMENT PLANT 211 5353-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 8,525.23

211 5353-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES 1,755.00

211 5353-113 OVERTIME 969.31

211 5353-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 3,031.42

WATER DISTRIBUTION 211 5354-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,797.52

211 5354-113 OVERTIME 139.42

ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION 211 5355-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 4,875.57

211 5355-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES 170

211 5355-113 OVERTIME 9.44

211 5355-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 204.45

211 5355-730 IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BLDG 160

ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL 211 5356-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 3,235.68

211 5356-113 OVERTIME 88.29

211 5356-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 758.34

*** FUND 211 TOTALS *** 26,719.67

SANITARY SWR MTCE & CLEAN 212 5342-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 3,921.01

212 5342-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES 170

212 5342-113 OVERTIME 161.19

WASTEWATER TREATMNT PLANT 212 5344-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 11,878.75

212 5344-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 1,203.63

ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION 212 5345-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 4,875.58

212 5345-113 OVERTIME 9.44

212 5345-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 204.46

212 5345-730 IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BLDGS 160

ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL 212 5346-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 3,235.68

212 5346-113 OVERTIME 88.29

212 5346-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 758.35

*** FUND 212 TOTALS *** 26,666.38

MAINTENANCE & OPERATIONS 213 5361-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,536.12

213 5361-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES 1,552.00

213 5361-113 OVERTIME 102

213 5361-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 16.2

*** FUND 213 TOTALS *** 4,206.32

*** GRAND TOTALS *** 331,971.26

*** PAY CODE TOTALS ***



CITY OF MATTOON

8-24-07 PAYROLL

8-4-07/8-17-07

PAY CODE NO OF TIMES              HOURS AMOUNT

REGULAR PAY 34 3,523.50 55,450.70

OVERTIME PAY 34 361.5 10,941.99

SALARY PAY 63 11,560.72 238,476.66

HOLIDAY PAY-REGULAR 21 115.72 2,287.28

VACATION PAY 9 456 9,218.17

SICK PAY-AFSCME 8 65 1,374.87

VACATION PAY 19 413.5 10,389.51

SHIFT PAY 2 445.75 267.45

SHIFT PAY 4 340.5 238.35

STRAIGHT OT POLICE 0 9 230.88

COMP EARNED 0 34.5 0

COMP PAID 0 1 20.91

SICK-FD UNION 3 120 2,387.70

SICK-NON UNION 3 26.5 486.76

BURIAL PAY 1 1 67

BACK PAY 1 133.03



 8/30/2007  2:37 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     1

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 110  CITY COUNCIL

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      8/16/2007 THRU  8/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-001782 WCIA                   I-4635               110 5110-572        COMM PROMOTIO: ADVERTISING          090438         937.50

 

01-001783 ILLINOIS HOMEPAGE      I-4717               110 5110-572        COMM PROMOTIO: ADVERTISING          090386         250.00

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200708241917       110 5110-532        TELEPHONE    : 234-4633             090273          43.20

 

01-038800 POLK CITY DIRECTORIES  I-1278984            110 5110-319        MISCELLANEOUS: CITY DIRECTORIES     090410         233.50

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 110   CITY COUNCIL             TOTAL:       1,464.20

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-009800 COLES CO CLERK & RECOR I-200708281988       110 5120-522        NOTARY FEES  : NOTARY REGISTAR-KAUF 090354          10.00

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200708241901       110 5120-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-5654             090273         223.12

 

01-024060 IL DEPT OF NATURAL RES I-200708282031       110 5120-802        HUNTING/FISHI: HUNT/FISH 8-21/27    000000           6.25

 

01-024075 IL DEPT OF PUBLIC HEAL I-200708302076       110 5120-801        VITAL RECORDS: AUGUST 07 VR FEES    090384       1,028.00

 

01-038800 POLK CITY DIRECTORIES  I-1278984            110 5120-340        BOOKS & PERIO: CITY DIRECTORIES     090410         233.50

 

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-7473914002         110 5120-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: ENVELOPES,RIBBON     090276         126.99

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 120   CITY CLERK               TOTAL:       1,627.86

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-0277               110 5130-561        BUSINESS MEET: MEETING 8/3          090270          21.19

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-8481               110 5130-561        BUSINESS MEET: MEETING 8/9          090271          16.40

 

01-002800 CHAMBER OF COMMERCE    I-200708271979       110 5130-561        BUSINESS MEET: 2007 BUSINESS EXPO   090350         150.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 130   CITY ADMINISTRATOR       TOTAL:         187.59

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-009077 INTERACTIVE COMPUTER   I-57,018             110 5150-516        TECHNOLOGY SU: CALL CENTER MAINTENA 090388       1,170.00

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200708241901       110 5150-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-5654             090273          96.00

 

01-038800 POLK CITY DIRECTORIES  I-1278984            110 5150-319        MISCELLANEOUS: CITY DIRECTORIES     090410         116.75

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 150   FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION TOTAL:       1,382.75

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000513 WECKS LAWN CARE        I-1096140            110 5160-579        OTHER PURCHAS: MOWING               090439          75.00

 

01-038800 POLK CITY DIRECTORIES  I-1278984            110 5160-579        OTHER PURCHAS: CITY DIRECTORIES     090410         116.75

 



 8/30/2007  2:37 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     2

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 160  LEGAL SERVICES

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      8/16/2007 THRU  8/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-044430 JOHN THOMAS            I-188723.070829      110 5160-579        OTHER PURCHAS: MOWING               090430         215.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 160   LEGAL SERVICES           TOTAL:         406.75

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000703 TIGER DIRECT           I-P88556300102       110 5170-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: CONNECTIVITY TOOLKIT 090431          49.94

 

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     C-7094               110 5170-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: REFUND TAX           090270           5.33-

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-6182               110 5170-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: IT EQUIPMENT         090271          84.26

 

01-028498 BRIAN JOHANPETER       I-200708271976       110 5170-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: MILEAGE 8/16-17      090391         219.92

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 170   COMPUTER INFO SYSTEMS    TOTAL:         348.79

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001791 JEFF EATON             I-200708292064       110 5190-579        MISC OTHER PU: CRUISE N' BROADWAY   090368         250.00

 

01-035860 MORGAN'S MARKET        I-17039              110 5190-579        MISC OTHER PU: GOLF OUTING          090401         169.27

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 190   COUNCIL CONTINGENCY      TOTAL:         419.27

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001272 THE GALLERY COLLECTION I-7-SC5408           110 5211-319        MISCELLANEOUS: CARDS                090429          56.63

 

01-001583 RESERVE ACCOUNT        I-200708271970       110 5211-531        POSTAGE      : REPLENISH POSTAGE ME 090415         600.00

 

01-005600 CATER-VEND             I-202528             110 5211-579        MISC OTHER PU: COFFEE,CREAM,SUGAR   090348          36.90

 

01-030056 LAKE LAND FLORALS      I-200708271969       110 5211-579        MISC OTHER PU: PLANTER              090393          47.99

 

01-038400 PITNEY BOWES INC       I-5093316-AU07       110 5211-531        POSTAGE      : METER RENTAL 5/30-8/ 090275         140.00

 

01-038800 POLK CITY DIRECTORIES  I-1278984            110 5211-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: CITY DIRECTORIES     090410         233.50

 

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-1C71844001         110 5211-319        MISCELLANEOUS: TONER,BUSINESS CARDS 090278         920.03

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 211   POLICE ADMINISTRATION    TOTAL:       2,035.05

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-13261              110 5212-319        MISCELLANEOUS: SOFTWARE             090278          39.99

 

01-045820 WALMART COMMUNITY BRC  I-07854              110 5212-319        MISCELLANEOUS: INVESTIGATION SUPPLI 090446          13.33

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 212   CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION   TOTAL:          53.32

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



 8/30/2007  2:37 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     3

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 217  CUSTODY OF PRISONERS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      8/16/2007 THRU  8/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-004400 BURGER KING            I-200708271964       110 5217-330        FOOD         : JULY 07 PRISONER MEA 090346           6.98

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 217   CUSTODY OF PRISONERS     TOTAL:           6.98

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000933 DAVID VANDERPORT       I-200708271968       110 5221-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: TRAVEL 8/5-8         090432         158.29

 

01-000936 TRAVIS EASTON          I-200708271966       110 5221-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: MEALS 8/5-8          090367          93.50

 

01-044268 JASON TAYLOR           I-200708302077       110 5221-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: MEALS 8-5/8          090426          93.50

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 221   POLICE TRAINING          TOTAL:         345.29

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001620 VERIZON WIRELESS       I-1746651042         110 5222-533        CELLULAR PHON: MOBILES              090433          29.28

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200708241902       110 5222-534        PAGERS       : 400-5965             090273         135.52

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200708292073       110 5222-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-2677             090361          59.66

 

01-036880 NEXTEL PARTNERS, INC   I-519603086-065      110 5222-533        CELLULAR PHON: MOBILES              090403         518.84

 

01-046780 ADAM WEINSTOCK         I-200708271965       110 5222-532        TELEPHONE    : REPAIR NEXTEL PHONE  090440          55.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 222   COMMUNICATION SERVICES   TOTAL:         798.30

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-002958 BATTERY SPECIALISTS    I-63973              110 5223-318        VEHICLE PARTS: 2L16 REPAIR          090341          59.95

 

01-045820 WALMART COMMUNITY BRC  I-04883              110 5223-318        VEHICLE PARTS: FLOOR MATS           090446          14.81

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 223   AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES      TOTAL:          74.76

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708292074       110 5224-321        NATURAL GAS &: 1321 RICHMOND        090336          34.46

 

01-001789 ALTERNATIVE COMMUNICAT I-07-5424            110 5224-432        REPAIR OF BUI: 1/2 PAINTING AT PIST 090309       1,868.00

 

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-200708271934       110 5224-828        REAL ESTATE T: 3121 DEWITT          090356           1.00

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-200708271948       110 5224-828        REAL ESTATE T: 1713 WABASH          090357           6.00

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-200708271949       110 5224-828        REAL ESTATE T: 1710 WABASH          090357          11.48

 

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200708241903       110 5224-322        ELECTRICITY  : PISTOL RANGE         090272          65.84

 

01-009000 COMMERCIAL ELECTRIC    I-23082001           110 5224-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: REPAIR LOBBY LIGHT   090359          79.62

 

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200708221891       110 5224-410        UTILITY SERVI: 221 S 17TH           000000          36.85



 8/30/2007  2:37 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     4

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 224  POLICE BUILDINGS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      8/16/2007 THRU  8/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200708221892       110 5224-410        UTILITY SERVI: 1710 WABASH          000000         107.95

 

01-038300 PERRY'S LOCKSMITH      I-26-46796           110 5224-432        REPAIR OF BUI: SERVICE CALL         090409          78.50

 

01-040345 ROTO-ROOTER            I-2033               110 5224-432        REPAIR OF BUI: CLEAN OUT TRAPS      090416          75.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 224   POLICE BUILDINGS         TOTAL:       2,364.70

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000061 HOME DEPOT             I-6025421            110 5241-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: FRICTION TAPE        090379          11.82

 

01-000550 ALEXANDERS AUTO PARTS  I-200708292065       110 5241-318        VEHICLE PARTS: COUPLER,CLAMPS,BULBS 090335          75.18

01-000550 ALEXANDERS AUTO PARTS  I-200708292065       110 5241-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: COUPLER,CLAMPS,BULBS 090335           3.31

 

01-000703 TIGER DIRECT           I-P88556300101       110 5241-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: FDST1 SWITCH         090431         117.16

 

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-1756               110 5241-319        MISCELLANEOUS: 2 CANON SPEED LIGHT  090270         465.69

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-5643               110 5241-319        MISCELLANEOUS: DIGITAL CAMERA       090270         584.95

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-8809               110 5241-531        POSTAGE      : POSTAGE              090271          16.25

 

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708241916       110 5241-321        NATURAL GAS &: HWY 16 STA 2         090269          42.43

 

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-200708271936       110 5241-828        REAL ESTATE T: 2700 MARSHALL        090356           2.14

 

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200708241900       110 5241-321        NATURAL GAS &: HWY 16 STA 2         090272         380.29

 

01-010900 D TO Z SPORTS          I-15406              110 5241-315        UNIFORMS & CL: SHIRTS               090364          74.80

 

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2921391            110 5241-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: MEASURING WHEEL      090274          35.99

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2922097            110 5241-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: SPRAYER              090274          44.99

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2931103            110 5241-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: STORAGE PART         090274          11.98

 

01-017000 FIRE EQUIPMENT SERVICE I-75588              110 5241-460        OTHER PROP MA: EXTINGUISHER MNTCE   090374          40.00

01-017000 FIRE EQUIPMENT SERVICE I-75981              110 5241-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: EXTINGUISHER MNTCE   090374          30.00

 

01-018042 GALLS INCORPORATED     I-59000789000012     110 5241-315        UNIFORMS & CL: TROUSERS             090376          92.78

01-018042 GALLS INCORPORATED     I-5900427800012      110 5241-315        UNIFORMS & CL: COLLAR PIN           090376          42.75

01-018042 GALLS INCORPORATED     I-5901554900013      110 5241-315        UNIFORMS & CL: BOOTS                090376         100.98

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200708241913       110 5241-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-0947             090273          41.66

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200708241914       110 5241-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-0924             090273          49.37

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200708241915       110 5241-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-0942             090273         108.61

 

01-024960 IL PLUMBING & HEATING  I-0013610            110 5241-432        REPAIR OF BUI: A/C REPAIR           090385          87.07

01-024960 IL PLUMBING & HEATING  I-0014505-IN         110 5241-432        REPAIR OF BUI: CEILING DIFFUSER,FOI 090385         214.69

 



 8/30/2007  2:37 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     5

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 241  FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN.

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      8/16/2007 THRU  8/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-030021 L & S SAFETY           I-2007-0700          110 5241-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: HAMMERS              090392         150.00

 

01-031000 LORENZ SUPPLY CO.      I-115675-00          110 5241-312        CLEANING SUPP: FLOOR CLEANER,TOWELS 090394         151.10

 

01-036880 NEXTEL PARTNERS, INC   I-794726086-049      110 5241-533        CELLULAR PHON: MOBILES              090403         133.87

 

01-037800 RAY O'HERRON CO        I-0724017-IN         110 5241-318        VEHICLE PARTS: STROBE LIGHT         090414         112.00

 

01-040250 MATTOON FARM PRIDE     I-CM11606            110 5241-318        VEHICLE PARTS: SPARK PLUG           090396           5.94

 

01-040358 ROY WALKER COMM. INC.  I-16743              110 5241-535        RADIOS       : REMOVE RADIO FROM 2L 090417          50.00

 

01-040451 S & S SERVICE CO       I-40444              110 5241-318        VEHICLE PARTS: L-24 REPAIRS         090418          45.06

01-040451 S & S SERVICE CO       I-40451              110 5241-318        VEHICLE PARTS: L-24 REPAIRS         090418          45.06

 

01-041000 SECRETARY OF STATE     I-200708302087       110 5241-319        MISCELLANEOUS: EXPLORER PLATES      090422          10.00

 

01-043371 SPRINGFIELD ELECTRIC   I-S2097375.001       110 5241-319        MISCELLANEOUS: BULBS                090425           4.36

 

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-37229              110 5241-319        MISCELLANEOUS: OFC SUPPLIES         090276          55.92

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-38895              110 5241-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: INK CARTRIDGES       090276          58.99

 

01-045820 WALMART COMMUNITY BRC  C-06338              110 5241-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: RETURNS              090277          15.88-

01-045820 WALMART COMMUNITY BRC  I-0347               110 5241-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: TAPE,CHAULK,TRAYS    090277          57.65

01-045820 WALMART COMMUNITY BRC  I-09302              110 5241-312        CLEANING SUPP: BLEACH,TRASH BAGS,DA 090277         101.14

 

01-045825 WALDEN TV & APPLIANCE  I-49359              110 5241-460        OTHER PROP MA: THERMOSTAT           090434          75.35

 

01-046715 WAVE GRAPHICS          I-6486               110 5241-315        UNIFORMS & CL: CAPTAINS SHIRTS      090437         224.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 241   FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN.   TOTAL:       3,939.45

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-200708271935       110 5261-828        REAL ESTATE T: 2808 CEDAR           090356           1.00

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-200708271939       110 5261-829        REAL ESTATE T: 2113 MARION          090356           3.22

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 261   CODE ENFORCEMENT ADMIN   TOTAL:           4.22

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001543 TERI WHITLEY           I-200708271972       110 5310-564        PRIVATE VEHIC: MILEAGE 8/8-9        090441          18.92

 

01-038800 POLK CITY DIRECTORIES  I-1278984            110 5310-340        BOOKS & PERIO: CITY DIRECTORIES     090410         233.50

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 310   PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN       TOTAL:         252.42

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



 8/30/2007  2:37 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     6

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 320  STREETS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      8/16/2007 THRU  8/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000061 HOME DEPOT             I-0179234            110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: MASON LINE           090379           9.97

01-000061 HOME DEPOT             I-5062966            110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: PAINTERS MITT,BRUSH  090379          13.32

01-000061 HOME DEPOT             I-8062603            110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: PAINTERS MIT         090379           8.91

 

01-000103 APWA-IPSI              I-200708271973       110 5320-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: REG 10/7-12 HARTBANK 090339         650.00

 

01-000550 ALEXANDERS AUTO PARTS  I-200708292068       110 5320-316        TOOLS AND EQU: U JOINT,SCREWS,AIR F 090335          19.91

01-000550 ALEXANDERS AUTO PARTS  I-200708292068       110 5320-318        VEHICLE PARTS: U JOINT,SCREWS,AIR F 090335         196.09

 

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708292066       110 5320-321        NATURAL GAS &: 212 N 12TH           090336          12.13

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708292067       110 5320-321        NATURAL GAS &: 221 N 12TH           090336         120.59

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708292070       110 5320-321        NATURAL GAS &: 212 N 12TH           090336         122.67

 

01-001389 AMERICAN TOWING        I-200708292061       110 5320-519        OTHER PROFESS: TOW CARS             090338         480.00

 

01-001787 BROWN'S AUTO SALES OF  I-200708271957       110 5320-519        OTHER PROFESS: REMOVE ROAD OIL      090345         100.00

 

01-001792 NICHOLS PARKING LOT SW I-2007-480           110 5320-519        OTHER PROFESS: STRIPING TEST        090404       1,003.08

 

01-001793 CHRIS BARTLETT         I-200708302075       110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: BIKE TIRE TUBES      090340          20.52

 

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-123179             110 5320-440        RENTALS      : SKID STEER & BREAKER 090344         450.00

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-T53024             110 5320-318        VEHICLE PARTS: PIPE                 090344         183.03

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-T53314             110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: FUEL CAP,CHAIN       090344          30.50

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-X13271             110 5320-433        REPAIR OF MAC: REPAIR 96 CASE       090344         911.08

 

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-200708271924       110 5320-828        REAL ESTATE T: 1105 RICHMOND        090355           8.74

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-200708271945       110 5320-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   090357           4.38

 

01-022400 HOWELL ASPHALT CO      I-3899MB             110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : HOWELL ASPHALT CO    090380         810.00

01-022400 HOWELL ASPHALT CO      I-3900MB             110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : HOWELL ASPHALT CO    090380         675.00

01-022400 HOWELL ASPHALT CO      I-3901MB             110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : HOWELL ASPHALT CO    090380         729.00

01-022400 HOWELL ASPHALT CO      I-3902MB             110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : HOWELL ASPHALT CO    090380         437.40

01-022400 HOWELL ASPHALT CO      I-3926MB             110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : HOWELL ASPHALT CO    090380         270.27

 

01-023500 MOTION INDUSTRIES      I-IL64-795765        110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: PAINT                090402          42.96

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200708241894       110 5320-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-5171             090273         229.27

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200708241895       110 5320-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-5663             090273          37.70

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200708241896       110 5320-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-5522             090273          85.43

 

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200708021656       110 5320-410        UTILITY SERVI: 221 N 12TH           000000          51.45

 

01-038300 PERRY'S LOCKSMITH      I-44914              110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: PADLOCKS             090409          12.50

 

01-039600 BEN TIRE AUTO SERVICE  I-200708292072       110 5320-433        REPAIR OF MAC: TIRE REPAIRS         090343          46.95



 8/30/2007  2:37 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     7

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 320  STREETS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      8/16/2007 THRU  8/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-039600 BEN TIRE AUTO SERVICE  I-200708292072       110 5320-434        REPAIR OF VEH: TIRE REPAIRS         090343          13.00

 

01-039920 JEFF RATLIFF           I-200708271956       110 5320-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: REIMB CDL            090412          50.00

 

01-040467 SAFETY COMPLIANCE      I-11153              110 5320-313        MEDICAL & SAF: SAFETY GLASSES       090419          16.80

 

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    C-1854-7             110 5320-741        MACHINERY    : RETURN               090315       2,500.00-

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-0862-1             110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : PAINT SUPPLIES       090315          18.76

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-0938-9             110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: WIRE CAGE FRAME      090315           2.29

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-0941-3             110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: COVER,WIRE CAGE FRAM 090315          12.56

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-0945-4             110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: ROLLER TRAY          090315           4.48

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-0958-7             110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : PAINT SUPPLIES       090315          35.02

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-1095-7             110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : PAINT SUPPLIES       090315          70.04

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-1140-1             110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : PAINT SUPPLIES       090315          61.41

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-1174-0             110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : PAINT SUPPLIES       090315          75.08

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-1202-9             110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: PAINT SUPPLIES       090315          19.19

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-1257-3             110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : PAINT SUPPLIES       090315          62.18

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-1274-8             110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : PAINT SUPPLIES       090315          21.72

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-1389-4             110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : PAINT SUPPLIES       090315          35.02

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-1487-6             110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : PAINT SUPPLIES       090316          52.26

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-1762-2             110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : PAINT SUPPLIES       090316       1,666.69

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-1819-0             110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : STRIPING             090316          32.19

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-1836-4             110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : PAINT SUPPLIES       090316          77.25

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-1849-7             110 5320-741        MACHINERY    : SPRAY GUN            090316       6,600.00

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-1970-1             110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : PAINT SUPPLIES       090316          66.58

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-5320-0             110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : STRIPING             090316          59.94

 

01-045820 WALMART COMMUNITY BRC  I-09678              110 5320-312        CLEANING SUPP: TISSUE,DRANO         090277         127.94

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 320   STREETS                  TOTAL:      14,453.25

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000148 SCHULTZ CONSTRUCTION   I-200708292069       110 5323-351        CONCRETE     : CONCRETE 23RD & WEST 090421         198.00

 

01-001785 HABITAT FOR HUMANITY   I-200708292071       110 5323-351        CONCRETE     : SDWLK 713 DEWITT     090378         286.00

 

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-200708271944       110 5323-828        REAL ESTATE T: COLES CO COLLECTOR   090357           2.06

 

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-68734-1            110 5323-351        CONCRETE     : WESTVIEW DRIVE       090398       1,118.67

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 323   SIDEWALKS & CROSSWALKS   TOTAL:       1,604.73

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708241910       110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: 208 N 19TH           090268          27.39

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708241911       110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: 19TH & RICHMOND      090269          41.51

 



 8/30/2007  2:37 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     8

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 326  STREET LIGHTING

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      8/16/2007 THRU  8/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200708292033       110 5326-322        ELECTRIC     : PIATT & RT 316       090312          10.90

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200708292034       110 5326-322        ELECTRIC     : 3020 LAKELAND BLVD   090312           5.15

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200708292035       110 5326-322        ELECTRIC     : SUNRISE APTS         090312           6.65

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200708292036       110 5326-322        ELECTRIC     : LAKELAND INN ENT     090312           6.40

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200708292037       110 5326-322        ELECTRIC     : SOUTH 9TH ST         090312           6.40

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200708292038       110 5326-322        ELECTRIC     : S RT 45 & PARADISE   090312          12.53

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200708292039       110 5326-322        ELECTRIC     : OLD STATE VILLAGE    090312           6.65

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200708292041       110 5326-322        ELECTRIC     : S RT 45 & PARADISE   090312          12.53

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200708292042       110 5326-322        ELECTRIC     : EAST RT 16           090312          71.70

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200708292043       110 5326-322        ELECTRIC     : S RT 45 & PARADISE   090312         154.52

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200708292044       110 5326-322        ELECTRIC     : S RT 45              090312          57.31

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 326   STREET LIGHTING          TOTAL:         419.64

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-200708271940       110 5328-828        REAL ESTATE T: 18 WILLIAMS CT       090356           6.88

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 328   STORM DRAINAGE           TOTAL:           6.88

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-048642 WOODY'S MUNICIPAL SUPP I-22104              110 5331-318        VEHICLE PARTS: SWEEPER REPAIRS      090445         773.23

01-048642 WOODY'S MUNICIPAL SUPP I-22109              110 5331-318        VEHICLE PARTS: SWEEPER REPAIRS      090445         817.58

01-048642 WOODY'S MUNICIPAL SUPP I-22188              110 5331-318        VEHICLE PARTS: SWEEPER REPAIRS      090445          31.51

01-048642 WOODY'S MUNICIPAL SUPP I-22285              110 5331-318        VEHICLE PARTS: SWEEPER REPAIRS      090445         746.15

01-048642 WOODY'S MUNICIPAL SUPP I-22286              110 5331-318        VEHICLE PARTS: SWEEPER REPAIRS      090445       1,252.07

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 331   STREET CLEANING          TOTAL:       3,620.54

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-006790 CLARKE MOSQUITO CONTRO I-5021297            110 5332-314        CHEMICALS    : MOSQUITO SPRAY       090352       3,400.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 332   MOSQUITO ABATEMENT       TOTAL:       3,400.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200708141778       110 5335-410        UTILITY SERVI: 420 LOGAN            000000          31.67

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 335   YARD WASTE COLLECTION    TOTAL:          31.67

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-015410 EZ PARCEL & BUSINESS S I-44958              110 5370-319        MISCELLANEOUS: SHIPPING             090371          13.26

 

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-12477              110 5370-319        MISCELLANEOUS: PAPER                090279           5.75

 

01-045820 WALMART COMMUNITY BRC  I-01938              110 5370-319        MISCELLANEOUS: WIPES,CABLES,SDTV    090436         106.22

01-045820 WALMART COMMUNITY BRC  I-04397              110 5370-319        MISCELLANEOUS: MINI BLIND           090436           3.88

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 370   CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION  TOTAL:         129.11

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



 8/30/2007  2:37 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     9

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 381  CUSTODIAL SERVICES

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      8/16/2007 THRU  8/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200708292062       110 5381-534        PAGERS       : 402-2636             090361          11.30

 

01-043371 SPRINGFIELD ELECTRIC   I-S2098858.001       110 5381-319        MISCELLANEOUS: CITY HALL LIGHT      090425          21.31

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 381   CUSTODIAL SERVICES       TOTAL:          32.61

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000780 WALK HEATING & AIR CON I-200708271971       110 5383-432        REPAIR OF BUI: REPAIR BURNT WIRES   090435         352.90

 

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-200708271930       110 5383-828        REAL ESTATE T: 1701 WABASH          090355           9.00

 

01-031000 LORENZ SUPPLY CO.      I-114282-00          110 5383-319        MISCELLANEOUS: FLOOR STRIPPER       090394          17.65

01-031000 LORENZ SUPPLY CO.      I-114336-00          110 5383-319        MISCELLANEOUS: FLOOR SEALER         090394          56.58

01-031000 LORENZ SUPPLY CO.      I-114402-00          110 5383-319        MISCELLANEOUS: SEALER               090394          23.90

 

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200708141777       110 5383-410        UTILITY SERVI: 1701 WABASH          000000          26.13

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 383   BURGESS OSBORNE          TOTAL:         486.16

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-041820 SHOWALTER ELECTRIC INC I-2360               110 5384-432        REPAIR OF BUI: FIX LIGHTS AT TRAIN  090423         162.50

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 384   RAILROAD DEPOT           TOTAL:         162.50

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-200708271925       110 5385-828        REAL ESTATE T: 112-116 N 16TH       090355           4.64

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-200708271926       110 5385-828        REAL ESTATE T: 1700 BROADWDAY       090355           2.60

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-200708271927       110 5385-828        REAL ESTATE T: 1706 BROADWAY        090355           2.14

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-200708271928       110 5385-828        REAL ESTATE T: 1708 BROADWAY        090355           2.06

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-200708271929       110 5385-828        REAL ESTATE T: 1617-1625 BROADWAY   090355          11.66

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-200708271933       110 5385-828        REAL ESTATE T: PARKING LOT          090356           3.24

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-200708271947       110 5385-828        REAL ESTATE T: PARKING LOT          090357          12.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 385   PARKING LOTS             TOTAL:          38.34

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-200708271982       110 5388-828        REAL ESTATE T: 312 S 32ND           090357           8.56

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 388   GARMENT FACTORY          TOTAL:           8.56

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000550 ALEXANDERS AUTO PARTS  I-200708302078       110 5511-434        REPAIR OF VEH: MUD FLAPS            090335          10.31

 

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-T52790             110 5511-433        REPAIR OF MAC: MOWER REPAIR         090344          29.59

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-T53312             110 5511-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: WEEDEATER SUPPLY     090344          25.51

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-T53313             110 5511-433        REPAIR OF MAC: MOWER PARTS          090344           3.84



 8/30/2007  2:37 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    10

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 511  PARK ADMINISTRATION

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      8/16/2007 THRU  8/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-X13338             110 5511-433        REPAIR OF MAC: WEEDEATER REPAIR     090344          60.29

 

01-039600 BEN TIRE AUTO SERVICE  I-200708302079       110 5511-433        REPAIR OF MAC: TIRE REPAIRS         090343          21.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 511   PARK ADMINISTRATION      TOTAL:         150.54

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-5869               110 5512-531        POSTAGE      : POSTAGE              090270          21.40

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-9808               110 5512-531        POSTAGE      : POSTAGE              090271          21.40

 

01-024060 IL DEPT OF NATURAL RES I-200708271980       110 5512-802        HUNTING/FISHI: HUNT/FISH 8-7/13     000000         160.00

01-024060 IL DEPT OF NATURAL RES I-200708271981       110 5512-802        HUNTING/FISHI: HUNT/FISH 8-14/20    000000          73.75

 

01-024101 IL DEPARTMENT OF REVEN I-200708171889       110 5512-803        SALES TAX REM: JULY 07 SALES TAX    090263         776.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 512   LAKE ADMINISTRATION      TOTAL:       1,052.55

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200708141765       110 5521-410        UTILITY SERVI: 418 RICHMOND         000000          41.51

 

01-044325 TERMINIX               I-278036             110 5521-436        PEST CONTROL : PEST CONTROL         090427          50.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 521   DEMARS CENTER            TOTAL:          91.51

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708302080       110 5541-321        NATURAL GAS &: 500 B'DWAY           090336         126.32

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708302081       110 5541-321        NATURAL GAS &: 5TH & PRAIRIE        090336          40.03

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708302082       110 5541-321        NATURAL GAS &: 500 B'DWAY           090336         100.17

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708302083       110 5541-321        NATURAL GAS &: 500 B'DWAY           090337          22.91

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708302084       110 5541-321        NATURAL GAS &: 500 B'DWAY           090337          24.58

 

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-200708271921       110 5541-828        REAL ESTATE T: PETERSON PARK        090355         190.36

 

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200708141768       110 5541-410        UTILITY SERVI: 500 B'DWAY           000000          12.67

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200708141769       110 5541-410        UTILITY SERVI: 500 B'DWAY RR        000000          79.36

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200708141770       110 5541-410        UTILITY SERVI: 500 B'DWAY SHED      000000         169.53

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200708141771       110 5541-410        UTILITY SERVI: 301 RICHMOND         000000         438.18

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200708141772       110 5541-410        UTILITY SERVI: 307 RICHMOND-GRIMES  000000         343.78

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200708141773       110 5541-410        UTILITY SERVI: 305 RICHMOND         000000         379.61

 

01-044325 TERMINIX               I-278050             110 5541-436        PEST CONTROL : PEST CONTROL         090427          50.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 541   PETERSON PARK            TOTAL:       1,977.50

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-200708271923       110 5542-828        REAL ESTATE T: 800 S 14TH           090355          10.60



 8/30/2007  2:37 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    11

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 542  LAWSON PARK

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      8/16/2007 THRU  8/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-200708271932       110 5542-828        REAL ESTATE T: LAWSON PARK          090356         106.68

 

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200708141725       110 5542-410        UTILITY SERVI: BASEBALL DIAMOND     000000         624.47

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 542   LAWSON PARK              TOTAL:         741.75

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708241909       110 5544-321        NATURAL GAS &: 1200 CHAMPAIGN       090268          36.47

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 544   CUNNINGHAM PARK          TOTAL:          36.47

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-200708271941       110 5551-828        REAL ESTATE T: BASEBALL FIELDS      090356         115.80

 

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200708141767       110 5551-410        UTILITY SERVI: 801 SHELBY           000000          24.04

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 551   BOYS COMPLEX             TOTAL:         139.84

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708241906       110 5552-321        NATURAL GAS &: 311 N 6TH            090268          28.80

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708241907       110 5552-321        NATURAL GAS &: 311 N 6TH            090268         154.73

 

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200708141776       110 5552-410        UTILITY SERVI: 713 SHELBY           000000         484.51

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 552   GIRLS COMPLEX            TOTAL:         668.04

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708241904       110 5553-321        NATURAL GAS &: 409 SHELBY           090268         137.90

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708241908       110 5553-321        NATURAL GAS &: 312 N 10TH           090268          93.07

 

01-016140 FASTENAL COMPANY       I-ILMAT67971         110 5553-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: DRILL BITS           090373          32.90

 

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200708141766       110 5553-410        UTILITY SERVI: 421 SHELBY           000000         652.46

 

01-045820 WALMART COMMUNITY BRC  I-04970              110 5553-319        MISCELLANEOUS: METAL DETECTOR,BATTE 090436          79.56

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 553   JR FOOTBALL COMPLEX      TOTAL:         995.89

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-200708271938       110 5555-828        REAL ESTATE T: KINZEL PARK          090356           6.42

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 555   KINZEL FIELD             TOTAL:           6.42

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708241905       110 5556-321        NATURAL GAS &: 221 SHELBY           090268         398.86

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 556   T-BALL COMPLEX           TOTAL:         398.86

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



 8/30/2007  2:37 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    12

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 561  EAST CAMPGROUND

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      8/16/2007 THRU  8/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-010167 CUMBERLAND CO COLLECTO I-200708271960       110 5561-828        REAL ESTATE T: EAST CAMPGROUND      090363       1,454.52

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 561   EAST CAMPGROUND          TOTAL:       1,454.52

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000481 PANA BAIT CO           I-2532273            110 5563-317        CONCESSION & : CONCESSIONS          090406         446.35

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 563   MARINA AREA              TOTAL:         446.35

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000092 DIEPHOLZ TRUCKING LLC  I-4605               110 5564-450        CONSTRUCTION : HAULING SAND         090365         289.25

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 564   BEACH AREA               TOTAL:         289.25

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000467 PECKHAM GUYTON ALBERS  I-86853              110 5652-511        SOUTH RT45 BU: MIDTOWN BUS DIST P/E 090408       3,620.49

01-000467 PECKHAM GUYTON ALBERS  I-86854              110 5652-511        SOUTH RT45 BU: B'DWAY EAST TIF P/E  090408       3,501.90

01-000467 PECKHAM GUYTON ALBERS  I-86855              110 5652-511        SOUTH RT45 BU: B'DWAY E BUS DIST P/ 090408       1,000.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 652   SOUTH RT45 BUSINESS DISTRTOTAL:       8,122.39

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 110   GENERAL FUND             TOTAL:      56,677.57



 8/30/2007  2:37 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    13

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 122  HOTEL TAX FUND

DEPARTMENT: 653  HOTEL TAX ADMINISTRATION

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      8/16/2007 THRU  8/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-0018               122 5653-561        BUSINESS MEET: MEETING 8-8          090270          30.86

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-0027               122 5653-572        COMMUNITY PRO: BAGELFEST THANK YOU  090270          75.00

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-0031               122 5653-572        COMMUNITY PRO: GIFT CERTIFICATES    090270          50.00

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-1731               122 5653-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: TRAIN TICKET         090270          36.00

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-6653               122 5653-572        COMMUNITY PRO: GIFT CERTIFICATES    090271          50.00

 

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708292050       122 5653-321        NATURAL GAS &: B'DWAY WELCOME SIGN  090310          24.16

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708292057       122 5653-321        NATURAL GAS &: DEWITT WELCOME SIGN  090311           9.56

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708292058       122 5653-321        NATURAL GAS &: MARSHALL WELCOME SIG 090311          14.89

 

01-001235 ANGELIA D BURGETT      I-200708271955       122 5653-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: MILEAGE 8-2/6        090347          29.10

 

01-001782 WCIA                   I-4635               122 5653-540        ADVERTISING  : ADVERTISING          090438         937.50

 

01-001783 ILLINOIS HOMEPAGE      I-4717               122 5653-540        ADVERTISING  : ADVERTISING          090386         250.00

 

01-002800 CHAMBER OF COMMERCE    I-200708271979       122 5653-572        COMMUNITY PRO: 2007 BUSINESS EXPO   090350         150.00

 

01-002967 BAYMONT INN            I-200708282027       122 5653-825        TOURISM GRANT: 8/8 LODGING          090342       2,872.80

 

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200708241912       122 5653-322        ELECTRICITY (: WELCOME SIGN         090272          27.04

 

01-008975 COMFORT SUITES         I-200708282028       122 5653-825        TOURISM GRANT: LODGING 8/10-11      090358       3,446.55

 

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-5305               122 5653-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: TONER,INK CARTRIDGES 090276         137.98

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 653   HOTEL TAX ADMINISTRATION TOTAL:       8,141.44

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 122   HOTEL TAX FUND           TOTAL:       8,141.44



 8/30/2007  2:37 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    14

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 123  FESTIVAL MGMT FUND

DEPARTMENT: 581  FESTIVAL ADMINISTRATION

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      8/16/2007 THRU  8/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-9550               123 5581-561        BUSINESS MEET: MEETING 7-17         090271          24.58

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 581   FESTIVAL ADMINISTRATION  TOTAL:          24.58

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-0705               123 5582-330        FOOD         : GIFT CARDS           090270          20.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 582   JULY 4TH FIREWORKS       TOTAL:          20.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-0021               123 5584-561        BUSINESS MEET: MEETING 7-18         090270           9.07

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-0097               123 5584-330        FOOD         : MEETING 7-20         090270          15.98

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-1343               123 5584-833        QUEEN PAGEANT: MEETING 7-19         090270          31.75

 

01-021348 CENTRAL IL NEWSPAPER   I-200708271984       123 5584-540        ADVERTISING  : BAGELFEST ADVERTISIN 090349       2,831.85

 

01-045603 WMCI,WWGO,WCBH         I-200708271983       123 5584-540        ADVERTISING  : BAGELFEST ADV        090444       1,454.02

 

01-045820 WALMART COMMUNITY BRC  I-04909              123 5584-330        FOOD         : SOAP,SNACKS          090277          58.94

01-045820 WALMART COMMUNITY BRC  I-08577              123 5584-330        FOOD         : GATORADE,WATER,CUPS, 090277         308.32

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 584   BAGELFEST                TOTAL:       4,709.93

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 123   FESTIVAL MGMT FUND       TOTAL:       4,754.51



 8/30/2007  2:37 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    15

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 125  INSURANCE & TORT JDGMNT

DEPARTMENT: N/A  NON-DEPARTMENTAL

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      8/16/2007 THRU  8/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-001784 ICRMT                  I-200708271978       125 4807-010        MISC. FINANCE: REIMB OVERPAY R. HEU 090383         481.35

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT       NON-DEPARTMENTAL         TOTAL:         481.35

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 125   INSURANCE & TORT JDGMNT  TOTAL:         481.35



 8/30/2007  2:37 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    16

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 130  CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

DEPARTMENT: N/A  NON-DEPARTMENTAL

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      8/16/2007 THRU  8/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-006748 CITY OF MATTOON        I-200708221893       130 1113-004        SAVINGS -THE : TRFR EXCESS CAP IMPR 090267     345,000.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT       NON-DEPARTMENTAL         TOTAL:     345,000.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-022405 HOWELL PAVING INC      I-1751               130 5321-730        IMPROVEMENTS : MIDTOWN ASPHALT      090381     213,782.20

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 321   STREETS                  TOTAL:     213,782.20

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001203 WHITSITT & ASSOCIATES, I-07-0500            130 5328-730        IMPROVEMENTS : APPRAISAL S 19TH ST  090442         900.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 328   STORM DRAINAGE           TOTAL:         900.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-200708271918       130 5608-577        YMCA LAND ACQ: 1505 RICHMOND        090355         260.54

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-200708271919       130 5608-577        YMCA LAND ACQ: 201 N 15TH           090355         518.48

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-200708271920       130 5608-577        YMCA LAND ACQ: 219 N 15TH           090355         234.74

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 608   YMCA LAND ACQUISITION    TOTAL:       1,013.76

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 130   CAPITAL PROJECT FUND     TOTAL:     560,695.96



 8/30/2007  2:37 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    17

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 211  WATER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 351  RESERVOIRS & WTR SOURCES

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      8/16/2007 THRU  8/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000038 EC BAKER & SONS INC    I-2734               211 5351-433        REPAIR OF MAC: REMOVE DESTRATIFIER  090369       1,341.60

 

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708292052       211 5351-321        NATURAL GAS &: RR2, POLE BARN       090310          37.04

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708292054       211 5351-321        NATURAL GAS &: LAKE PARADISE RD     090310          71.37

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708292056       211 5351-321        NATURAL GAS &: RR2, PICNIC PAVILION 090310          11.97

 

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200708241899       211 5351-322        ELECTRICITY  : RESERVOIR CONTROL AC 090272           4.90

 

01-009000 COMMERCIAL ELECTRIC    I-23081001           211 5351-579        MISC OTHER PU: TROUBLESHOOT LAKE PU 090359         112.50

 

01-041000 SECRETARY OF STATE     I-200708292049       211 5351-740        MACHINNERY & : BOAT TRAILER TITLE & 090314          15.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 351   RESERVOIRS & WTR SOURCES TOTAL:       1,594.38

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001208 R.P. LUMBER CO., INC.  I-16784              211 5352-730        IMPROVEMNTS O: EYE BOLTS,FASTENERS  090411          28.20

          PROJ: 127-500           LAKE PARADISE CLEAN LAKES      OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 

01-001508 JFNEW                  I-35551              211 5352-730        IMPROVEMNTS O: WETLAND PLANT INSTAL 090390       7,074.64

          PROJ: 127-700           LAKE PARADISE CLEAN LAKES      PROPERTY (CAPITAL ASSETS)

 

01-009093 CONNOR CO              I-S3169101.002       211 5352-730        IMPROVEMNTS O: CLEAN LAKES PROJECT  090360         677.16

          PROJ: 127-500           LAKE PARADISE CLEAN LAKES      OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 

01-010000 CRAWFORD MURPHY & TILL I-73525              211 5352-730        IMPROVEMNTS O: L PARADISE RESTORATI 090362      11,102.14

          PROJ: 127-501           LAKE PARADISE CLEAN LAKES      ENGINEERING - (DESIGN PHASE)

 

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2931055            211 5352-730        IMPROVEMNTS O: WEED STOP FABRIC     090372          63.96

          PROJ: 127-500           LAKE PARADISE CLEAN LAKES      OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2932498            211 5352-730        IMPROVEMNTS O: BOLT CUTTER          090372          22.99

          PROJ: 127-500           LAKE PARADISE CLEAN LAKES      OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2934681            211 5352-730        IMPROVEMNTS O: CABLE TIES           090372          12.35

          PROJ: 127-500           LAKE PARADISE CLEAN LAKES      OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2935577            211 5352-730        IMPROVEMNTS O: BLADE                090372           0.99

          PROJ: 127-500           LAKE PARADISE CLEAN LAKES      OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2937024            211 5352-730        IMPROVEMNTS O: UTILITY KNIFE, BLADE 090372           9.98

          PROJ: 127-500           LAKE PARADISE CLEAN LAKES      OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 

01-045820 WALMART COMMUNITY BRC  I-01477              211 5352-730        IMPROVEMNTS O: FABRIC,THREAD        090436          78.54

          PROJ: 127-500           LAKE PARADISE CLEAN LAKES      OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

01-045820 WALMART COMMUNITY BRC  I-07457              211 5352-730        IMPROVEMNTS O: FABRIC               090277          33.00

          PROJ: 127-500           LAKE PARADISE CLEAN LAKES      OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 352   RESTRICTED RELIANT EXPS  TOTAL:      19,103.95

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



 8/30/2007  2:37 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    18

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 211  WATER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 353  WATER TREATMENT PLANT

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      8/16/2007 THRU  8/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000061 HOME DEPOT             I-3062092            211 5353-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: VOLT METER           090379          49.95

 

01-000063 HYDRO-KINETICS CORP    I-2629               211 5353-378        PLANT MTCE & : SPARE PARTS KIT,DIAP 090382         442.58

 

01-001414 GENERAL CHEMICAL PERFO I-90044698           211 5353-314        CHEMICALS    : ALUMINUM SULFATE     090377       2,305.46

 

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200708241897       211 5353-322        ELECTRICITY  : WATER PURIFICATION P 090272       3,827.78

 

01-009000 COMMERCIAL ELECTRIC    I-23074001           211 5353-433        REPAIR OF MAC: REPAIR LIME SHAKER   090359         225.00

 

01-014119 DURKIN EQUIPMENT CO    I-S00003940          211 5353-439        OTHER REPAIR : SERVICE INSTRUMENTAT 090366         680.00

01-014119 DURKIN EQUIPMENT CO    I-S00003954          211 5353-377        PLANT EQUIPME: POWER SUPPLY         090366         348.72

 

01-017425 FISHER SCIENTIFIC      I-2986268            211 5353-319        MISCELLANEOUS: LAB SUPPLIES         090375       1,090.45

01-017425 FISHER SCIENTIFIC      I-3080469            211 5353-319        MISCELLANEOUS: LAB SUPPLIES         090375          67.68

 

01-023500 MOTION INDUSTRIES      I-IL64-796028        211 5353-378        PLANT MTCE & : LOCKNUTS,LOCKWASHER  090402           4.42

 

01-025682 IMCO UTILITY SUPPLY CO I-1005173-01         211 5353-378        PLANT MTCE & : REDUCER              090387          89.00

01-025682 IMCO UTILITY SUPPLY CO I-1005173-02         211 5353-378        PLANT MTCE & : REDUCER              090387          89.00

 

01-030021 L & S SAFETY           I-2007-0653          211 5353-313        MEDICAL & SAF: GLOVES               090392           5.34

 

01-031402 M & M PUMP SUPPLY INC  I-482208             211 5353-377        PLANT EQUIPME: HOSE CLAMPS          090395          14.37

 

01-035365 MISSISSIPPI LIME COMPA I-764323             211 5353-314        CHEMICALS    : LIME                 090400       2,527.74

 

01-037976 PDC LABORATORIES       I-563763S            211 5353-519        OTHER PROFESS: WATER TESTING        090407         263.00

 

01-040465 SAL CHEMICAL           I-75375              211 5353-314        CHEMICALS    : CHEMICALS            090420       1,848.96

 

01-043371 SPRINGFIELD ELECTRIC   I-S2104372.001       211 5353-377        PLANT EQUIPME: SPRINGFIELD ELECTRIC 090425         119.60

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 353   WATER TREATMENT PLANT    TOTAL:      13,999.05

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708292053       211 5354-321        NATURAL GAS &: RR2, WATER DEPT      090310          73.72

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708292055       211 5354-321        NATURAL GAS &: 2800 E LAKE PARADISE 090310         794.96

 

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-200708271943       211 5354-828        REAL ESTATE T: ELEVATED WATER TANK  090356          16.74

 

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200708241898       211 5354-321        NATURAL GAS &: SBLHC PUMP STA       090272         107.16

 

01-025682 IMCO UTILITY SUPPLY CO I-1004719-04         211 5354-379        OTHER WATER M: GRIPRING ACC,BOLT CO 090387         222.50

01-025682 IMCO UTILITY SUPPLY CO I-1004833-00         211 5354-374        SERVICE LINE : METER ADAPTERS       090387         149.46

 



 8/30/2007  2:37 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    19

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 211  WATER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 354  WATER DISTRIBUTION

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      8/16/2007 THRU  8/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-030021 L & S SAFETY           I-2007-0672          211 5354-313        MEDICAL & SAF: GLOVES               090392          32.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 354   WATER DISTRIBUTION       TOTAL:       1,396.54

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-035266 MIDWEST METER INC      I-86409              211 5355-730        IMPROVEMENTS : AMR PROJECT          090399         718.41

01-035266 MIDWEST METER INC      I-86711              211 5355-730        IMPROVEMENTS : AMR PROJECT          090399          72.50

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 355   ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION  TOTAL:         790.91

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000103 APWA-IPSI              I-200708271974       211 5356-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: REG 10/7-12 LANG     090339         650.00

 

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708292051       211 5356-321        NATURAL GAS &: S 12TH ST            090310          26.86

 

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-200708271931       211 5356-828        REAL ESTATE T: 608 S 12TH           090356          36.24

 

01-010167 CUMBERLAND CO COLLECTO I-200708271958       211 5356-816        FARM EXPENSES: RJ THOMAS FARMS      090363          52.80

01-010167 CUMBERLAND CO COLLECTO I-200708271959       211 5356-816        FARM EXPENSES: BRAD MONTGOMERY FARM 090363         119.50

01-010167 CUMBERLAND CO COLLECTO I-200708271961       211 5356-816        FARM EXPENSES: HUFFMANS             090363         362.88

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 356   ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL TOTAL:       1,248.28

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 211   WATER FUND               TOTAL:      38,133.11



 8/30/2007  2:37 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    20

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 212  SEWER FUND

DEPARTMENT: N/A  NON-DEPARTMENTAL

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      8/16/2007 THRU  8/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-016140 FASTENAL COMPANY       I-ILMAT68130         212 5342-319        MISCELLANEOUS: GATORADE             090373          50.16

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT       NON-DEPARTMENTAL         TOTAL:          50.16

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000550 ALEXANDERS AUTO PARTS  I-200708292068       212 5342-318        VEHICLE PARTS: U JOINT,SCREWS,AIR F 090335          77.28

 

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-T52960             212 5342-318        VEHICLE PARTS: 12/24 VOLT AMBER STR 090344          77.04

 

01-030021 L & S SAFETY           I-2007-0672          212 5342-313        MEDICAL & SAF: GLOVES               090392          32.00

 

01-037936 ONE STOP COPY SHOP     I-14357              212 5342-730        IMPROVEMENTS : 35TH STORM SEWER PER 090405         312.00

 

01-039600 BEN TIRE AUTO SERVICE  I-200708292072       212 5342-433        REPAIR OF MAC: TIRE REPAIRS         090343          18.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 342   SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM  TOTAL:         516.32

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-200708271922       212 5343-828        REAL ESTATE T: SEWAGE PUMP STA      090355           5.72

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-200708271942       212 5343-828        REAL ESTATE T: PUMP STA             090356           1.00

 

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200708292045       212 5343-322        ELECTRICITY (: LLC LIFT STA         090312          74.03

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200708292046       212 5343-322        ELECTRICITY (: BUXTON CENTRE LIFT S 090312          64.53

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200708292047       212 5343-322        ELECTRICITY (: GOLDEN VALLEY SEWER  090313         113.60

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200708292048       212 5343-322        ELECTRICITY (: SBLHC LIFT STA       090313         228.93

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 343   SEWER LIFT STATIONS      TOTAL:         487.81

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000059 WILKENS-ANDERSON       I-S1078984.001       212 5344-319        MISCELLANEOUS: AUTOCLAVE            090443       3,704.00

 

01-001777 TESTAMERICAN LABORATOR I-50060233           212 5344-439        OTHER REPAIR : SLUDGE & PRETREATMEN 090428         910.00

 

01-001790 RAVEN ENVIRONMENTAL PR I-18387              212 5344-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: CORE SAMPLER         090413         108.38

 

01-006780 CLARK DIETZ INC        I-41955              212 5344-511        PLANNING & DE: CSO LONG TERM CNTRL  090351       1,550.15

01-006780 CLARK DIETZ INC        I-41985              212 5344-730        IMPROVEMENTS : WWTP AUTOMATION 6/30 090351       4,628.67

 

01-007090 CM WALKER TRUCKING INC I-81007              212 5344-460        OTHER PROPERT: SLUDGE HAULING 7-23/ 090353       4,620.00

01-007090 CM WALKER TRUCKING INC I-82007              212 5344-460        OTHER PROPERT: SLUDGE HAULING 8-13/ 090353       1,622.50

 

01-009000 COMMERCIAL ELECTRIC    I-200708282030       212 5344-730        IMPROVEMENTS : WWTP AUTOMATION 7/07 090359     186,153.26

          PROJ: 146-700           WWTP AUTOM & MCC REPL          Property (Capital Assets)

01-009000 COMMERCIAL ELECTRIC    I-23089001           212 5344-439        OTHER REPAIR : REPAIR BASIN PUMPS   090359         300.00

 

01-014119 DURKIN EQUIPMENT CO    I-S00003909          212 5344-439        OTHER REPAIR : SERVICE INSTRUMENTAT 090366         685.00

 



 8/30/2007  2:37 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    21

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 212  SEWER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 344  WASTEWATER TREATMNT PLANT

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      8/16/2007 THRU  8/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-015220 ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCE I-489570             212 5344-319        MISCELLANEOUS: AMMONIA              090370         121.09

 

01-021400 ADRIAN P HEUERMANN     I-200708271962       212 5344-366        PLANT MTCE & : GREASE               090334          78.40

 

01-030021 L & S SAFETY           I-2007-0668          212 5344-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: GLOVES,CAUTION TAPE  090392          91.23

 

01-031402 M & M PUMP SUPPLY INC  I-483551             212 5344-366        PLANT MTCE & : COUPLING,MECHANICAL  090395          97.00

 

01-035050 METZGER WELDING SERVIC I-200708282029       212 5344-433        REPAIR OF MAC: WELD SPREADER        090397         117.50

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 344   WASTEWATER TREATMNT PLANTTOTAL:     204,787.18

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-035266 MIDWEST METER INC      I-86409              212 5345-730        IMPROVEMENTS : AMR PROJECT          090399         718.41

01-035266 MIDWEST METER INC      I-86711              212 5345-730        IMPROVEMENTS : AMR PROJECT          090399          72.50

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 345   ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION  TOTAL:         790.91

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001620 VERIZON WIRELESS       I-1746484608         212 5346-533        CELLULAR PHON: MOBILES              090433         947.83

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 346   ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL TOTAL:         947.83

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 212   SEWER FUND               TOTAL:     207,580.21



 8/30/2007  2:37 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    22

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 213  CEMETERY FUND

DEPARTMENT: 361  MAINTENANCE & OPERATIONS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      8/16/2007 THRU  8/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-001794 SPENCE  MONUMENT COMPA I-200708302086       213 5361-730        IMPROVEMENTRS: CREMATION NICHE      090424       9,890.00

 

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-T53279             213 5361-433        REPAIR OF MAC: MOWER REPAIRS        090344          38.72

 

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-200708271950       213 5361-828        REAL ESTATE T: DODGE GROVE          090357          37.42

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-200708271951       213 5361-828        REAL ESTATE T: DODGE GROVE          090357          83.84

01-008000 COLES CO COLLECTOR     I-200708271952       213 5361-828        REAL ESTATE T: DODGE GROVE          090357         112.44

 

01-028005 JACKSON OIL COMPANY    I-29401              213 5361-326        FUEL         : DIESEL               090389         758.81

 

01-039600 BEN TIRE AUTO SERVICE  I-200708302079       213 5361-433        REPAIR OF MAC: TIRE REPAIRS         090343          13.00

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 361   MAINTENANCE & OPERATIONS TOTAL:      10,934.23

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 213   CEMETERY FUND            TOTAL:      10,934.23

                                                                                                 REPORT GRAND TOTAL:     887,398.38



 8/30/2007  2:37 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    23

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

2007-2008 110-5110-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            233.50         750         504.00

          110-5110-532        TELEPHONE                          43.20         600         428.69

          110-5110-572        COMM PROMOTIONS & RELATION      1,187.50       3,500         692.50

          110-5120-311        OFFICE SUPPLIES                   126.99       5,000       4,239.09

          110-5120-340        BOOKS & PERIODICALS               233.50         700         466.50

          110-5120-522        NOTARY FEES                        10.00         180          50.00

          110-5120-532        TELEPHONE                         223.12       3,000       2,126.22

          110-5120-801        VITAL RECORDS FEE REMITTAN      1,028.00       7,500       4,886.00

          110-5120-802        HUNTING/FISHING LIC. FEE R          6.25       1,000         714.25

          110-5130-561        BUSINESS MEETING EXPENSE          187.59       1,000         776.62

          110-5150-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            116.75         500         410.67

          110-5150-516        TECHNOLOGY SUPPORT SERVIC       1,170.00      10,500       2,006.00

          110-5150-532        TELEPHONE                          96.00         850         460.35

          110-5160-579        OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES          406.75       7,500       3,727.25

          110-5170-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                 128.87       2,000       1,695.77

          110-5170-562        TRAVEL & TRAINING                 219.92       5,000       4,780.08

          110-5190-579        MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI        419.27      12,500      10,050.73

          110-5211-311        OFFICE SUPPLIES                   233.50       3,600       2,477.13

          110-5211-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            976.66       2,000         102.19

          110-5211-531        POSTAGE                           740.00       2,500       1,429.18

          110-5211-579        MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI         84.89       5,000       4,272.82

          110-5212-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             53.32       4,000       3,229.55

          110-5217-330        FOOD                                6.98         400         367.70

          110-5221-562        TRAVEL & TRAINING                 345.29      27,500      10,752.61

          110-5222-532        TELEPHONE                         114.66      26,000      17,826.18

          110-5222-533        CELLULAR PHONE                    548.12       7,000       4,790.05

          110-5222-534        PAGERS                            135.52       1,800       1,255.92

          110-5223-318        VEHICLE PARTS                      74.76       4,000       3,068.34

          110-5224-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                  79.62       1,000         920.38

          110-5224-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI         34.46      50,000      35,008.12

          110-5224-322        ELECTRICITY                        65.84       1,000         828.57

          110-5224-410        UTILITY SERVICES                  144.80       2,300       1,700.26

          110-5224-432        REPAIR OF BUILDINGS             2,021.50      15,000       9,535.40

          110-5224-828        REAL ESTATE TAXES                  18.48           0          18.48-  Y

          110-5241-311        OFFICE SUPPLIES                   112.58       2,500       1,854.24

          110-5241-312        CLEANING SUPPLIES                 252.24       3,500       2,099.24

          110-5241-315        UNIFORMS & CLOTHING               535.31      15,000      10,279.30

          110-5241-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                 393.43       6,000       3,597.90

          110-5241-318        VEHICLE PARTS                     283.24       6,000       5,471.87

          110-5241-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES          1,120.92       7,500       5,692.79

          110-5241-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC            422.72      15,000      12,038.12

          110-5241-432        REPAIR OF BUILDINGS               301.76      10,000       7,903.33

          110-5241-460        OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICES         115.35       5,000       2,835.46

          110-5241-531        POSTAGE                            16.25         300         235.70

          110-5241-532        TELEPHONE                         199.64       5,000       2,998.33

          110-5241-533        CELLULAR PHONE                    133.87       3,600       2,660.90

          110-5241-535        RADIOS                             50.00      10,000       9,220.60



 8/30/2007  2:37 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    24

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

          110-5241-828        REAL ESTATE TAXES                   2.14          10           7.86

          110-5261-828        REAL ESTATE TAXES                   1.00           0           1.00-  Y

          110-5261-829        REAL ESTATE TAXES                   3.22           0           3.22-  Y

          110-5310-340        BOOKS & PERIODICALS               233.50         500         266.50

          110-5310-564        PRIVATE VEHICLE EXP REIMB          18.92           0         148.08-  Y

          110-5320-312        CLEANING SUPPLIES                 127.94       2,250       1,457.02

          110-5320-313        MEDICAL & SAFETY SUPPLIES          16.80       1,500         202.45-  Y

          110-5320-316        TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT                19.91       2,000         440.13

          110-5320-318        VEHICLE PARTS                     379.12      25,000      19,975.62

          110-5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            177.20      10,000       9,362.10-  Y

          110-5320-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC            255.39       7,500       5,322.18

          110-5320-359        OTHER STREET MAINT SUPPLIE      5,255.81      35,000      21,233.63

          110-5320-410        UTILITY SERVICES                   51.45       1,000         754.35

          110-5320-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY               958.03      12,500       4,880.75

          110-5320-434        REPAIR OF VEHICLES                 13.00      10,000       7,826.19

          110-5320-440        RENTALS                           450.00       5,000       2,161.25

          110-5320-519        OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE      1,583.08       2,500         797.08-  Y

          110-5320-532        TELEPHONE                         352.40       5,000       3,059.45

          110-5320-562        TRAVEL & TRAINING                 700.00       3,975       3,112.50

          110-5320-741        MACHINERY                       4,100.00     101,250      79,016.00

          110-5320-828        REAL ESTATE TAXES                  13.12          25          11.88

          110-5323-351        CONCRETE                        1,602.67      20,000      16,351.33

          110-5323-828        REAL ESTATE TAXES                   2.06          20          17.94

          110-5326-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI         68.90     150,000     104,180.19

          110-5326-322        ELECTRIC                          350.74       6,000       4,978.57

          110-5328-828        REAL ESTATE TAXES                   6.88           0           6.88-  Y

          110-5331-318        VEHICLE PARTS                   3,620.54       5,000         816.41

          110-5332-314        CHEMICALS                       3,400.00       6,000       2,600.00

          110-5335-410        UTILITY SERVICES                   31.67         500         373.32

          110-5370-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            129.11       2,000       1,600.79

          110-5381-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             21.31       1,000         978.69

          110-5381-534        PAGERS                             11.30         150         116.10

          110-5383-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             98.13       2,500       2,017.17

          110-5383-410        UTILITY SERVICES                   26.13         500         376.27

          110-5383-432        REPAIR OF BUILDINGS               352.90         500          97.30

          110-5383-828        REAL ESTATE TAXES                   9.00          25          16.00

          110-5384-432        REPAIR OF BUILDINGS               162.50       1,000         193.64-  Y

          110-5385-828        REAL ESTATE TAXES                  38.34         200         161.66

          110-5388-828        REAL ESTATE TAXES                   8.56          25          16.44

          110-5511-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                  25.51       8,000       6,973.53

          110-5511-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY               114.72       6,000       4,055.04

          110-5511-434        REPAIR OF VEHICLES                 10.31       5,000       4,286.38

          110-5512-531        POSTAGE                            42.80         100           7.00-  Y

          110-5512-802        HUNTING/FISHING REMITTANCE        233.75       6,500         536.50

          110-5512-803        SALES TAX REMITTANCE              776.00       2,500         502.00

          110-5521-410        UTILITY SERVICES                   41.51       1,000         855.70

          110-5521-436        PEST CONTROL SERVICES              50.00         400         300.00

          110-5541-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC            314.01      16,500      12,700.64



 8/30/2007  2:37 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    25

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

          110-5541-410        UTILITY SERVICES                1,423.13       6,000          93.34

          110-5541-436        PEST CONTROL SERVICES              50.00         300         200.00

          110-5541-828        REAL ESTATE TAXES                 190.36         200           9.64

          110-5542-410        UTILITY SERVICES                  624.47         500       1,195.35-  Y

          110-5542-828        REAL ESTATE TAXES                 117.28         150          32.72

          110-5544-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI         36.47         300         189.06

          110-5551-410        UTILITY SERVICES                   24.04       1,500       1,022.45

          110-5551-828        REAL ESTATE TAXES                 115.80         200          84.20

          110-5552-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI        183.53       5,500       3,711.37

          110-5552-410        UTILITY SERVICES                  484.51       4,000       1,403.44

          110-5553-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                  32.90         500          96.95

          110-5553-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             79.56       3,000         717.37

          110-5553-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI        230.97       2,500       2,174.05

          110-5553-410        UTILITY SERVICES                  652.46       3,000       2,116.39

          110-5555-828        REAL ESTATE TAXES                   6.42          25          18.58

          110-5556-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC            398.86       1,500         129.54

          110-5561-828        REAL ESTATE TAXES               1,454.52         400       1,054.52-  Y

          110-5563-317        CONCESSION & SOUVENIR SUPP        446.35      28,000      13,067.76

          110-5564-450        CONSTRUCTION SERVICES             289.25       4,000       3,192.18

          110-5652-511        SOUTH RT45 BUSINESS DISTRI      8,122.39      75,000      54,902.15

          122-5653-311        OFFICE SUPPLIES                   137.98       1,750       1,135.78

          122-5653-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI         48.61       2,500       2,196.27

          122-5653-322        ELECTRICITY (COLES MOULTRI         27.04         650         568.88

          122-5653-540        ADVERTISING                     1,187.50      20,000       1,704.75

          122-5653-561        BUSINESS MEETING EXPENSE           30.86       1,750       1,660.71

          122-5653-562        TRAVEL & TRAINING                  65.10       3,000       1,681.78

          122-5653-572        COMMUNITY PROMOTION & RELA        325.00       1,000         489.42

          122-5653-825        TOURISM GRANTS                  6,319.35      75,000      42,381.92

          123-5581-561        BUSINESS MEETING EXPENSE           24.58         500         376.48

          123-5582-330        FOOD                               20.00         700         630.11

          123-5584-330        FOOD                              383.24         200         208.72-  Y

          123-5584-540        ADVERTISING                     4,285.87      10,000          77.78

          123-5584-561        BUSINESS MEETING EXPENSE            9.07         300         124.89

          123-5584-833        QUEEN PAGEANT                      31.75       1,000         743.11

          125-4807-010        MISC. FINANCE D*NON-EXPENS        481.35      52,500-     51,234.45-

          130-1113-004        SAVINGS -THE BANK - XXXX38    345,000.00

          130-5321-730        IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL    213,782.20     275,000      61,169.42

          130-5328-730        IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL        900.00   1,000,000     997,100.00

          130-5608-577        YMCA LAND ACQUISITION           1,013.76           0      78,352.98-  Y

          211-5351-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC            120.38       5,000       5,503.91-  Y

          211-5351-322        ELECTRICITY                         4.90         100          85.30

          211-5351-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY             1,341.60           0       1,341.60-  Y

          211-5351-579        MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI        112.50         500         387.50

          211-5351-740        MACHINNERY & EQUIPMENT             15.00           0       5,682.95-  Y

          211-5352-730        IMPROVEMNTS OTHER THAN BUI     19,103.95     200,000      67,837.87-  Y

          211-5353-313        MEDICAL & SAFETY SUPPLIES           5.34         500         494.66

          211-5353-314        CHEMICALS                       6,682.16     190,000     110,813.99

          211-5353-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                  49.95       1,000         950.05



 8/30/2007  2:37 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    26

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

          211-5353-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES          1,158.13      12,500       9,709.64

          211-5353-322        ELECTRICITY                     3,827.78      55,000      43,210.12

          211-5353-377        PLANT EQUIPMENT                   482.69       7,500       6,832.18

          211-5353-378        PLANT MTCE & REPAIR               625.00       2,500       1,234.60

          211-5353-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY               225.00      11,500       4,925.00

          211-5353-439        OTHER REPAIR & MAINT. SERV        680.00       3,500       2,820.00

          211-5353-519        OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE        263.00       7,000       5,194.00

          211-5354-313        MEDICAL & SAFETY SUPPLIES          32.00       1,000          90.64

          211-5354-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC            975.84      55,000      37,275.29

          211-5354-374        SERVICE LINE MATERIALS            149.46      12,000       6,825.20

          211-5354-379        OTHER WATER MAINT. MATERIA        222.50      10,000       3,561.13

          211-5354-828        REAL ESTATE TAXES                  16.74          25           8.26

          211-5355-730        IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL        790.91      15,000       4,723.89

          211-5356-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC             26.86      20,000      17,446.27

          211-5356-562        TRAVEL & TRAINING                 650.00       3,000       2,110.00

          211-5356-816        FARM EXPENSES                     535.18       3,000       2,462.39

          211-5356-828        REAL ESTATE TAXES                  36.24         500         463.76

          212-5342-313        MEDICAL & SAFETY SUPPLIES          32.00       1,000          85.03

          212-5342-318        VEHICLE PARTS                     154.32      10,000       8,764.32

          212-5342-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             50.16

          212-5342-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY                18.00      10,000       9,571.50

          212-5342-730        IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL        312.00     808,000     804,541.72

          212-5343-322        ELECTRICITY (COLES-MOULTRI        481.09       6,000       4,551.22

          212-5343-828        REAL ESTATE TAXES                   6.72           0           6.72-  Y

          212-5344-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                 199.61      10,000       7,916.79

          212-5344-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES          3,825.09      15,000       6,480.04

          212-5344-366        PLANT MTCE & REPAIR MATERI        175.40      40,000      30,090.75

          212-5344-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY               117.50      40,000      26,862.36

          212-5344-439        OTHER REPAIR & MNTCE SERVI      1,895.00      25,000      14,673.71

          212-5344-460        OTHER PROPERTY MTCE SERVIC      6,242.50      25,000       6,919.22

          212-5344-511        PLANNING & DESIGN SERVICES      1,550.15       1,000         550.15-  Y

          212-5344-730        IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL    190,781.93     850,000     331,877.10

          212-5345-730        IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL        790.91      15,000       4,723.89

          212-5346-533        CELLULAR PHONE                    947.83       3,300       1,460.89

          213-5361-326        FUEL                              758.81       3,500       1,988.51

          213-5361-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY                51.72       2,000       1,407.51

          213-5361-730        IMPROVEMENTRS OTHER THAN B      9,890.00      48,000      28,112.00

          213-5361-828        REAL ESTATE TAXES                 233.70         500         266.30

                                TOTAL:                      887,398.38

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 



 8/30/2007  2:37 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    27

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    110-110                 CITY COUNCIL                                      1,464.20

                    110-120                 CITY CLERK                                        1,627.86

                    110-130                 CITY ADMINISTRATOR                                  187.59

                    110-150                 FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION                          1,382.75

                    110-160                 LEGAL SERVICES                                      406.75

                    110-170                 COMPUTER INFO SYSTEMS                               348.79

                    110-190                 COUNCIL CONTINGENCY                                 419.27

                    110-211                 POLICE ADMINISTRATION                             2,035.05

                    110-212                 CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION                               53.32

                    110-217                 CUSTODY OF PRISONERS                                  6.98

                    110-221                 POLICE TRAINING                                     345.29

                    110-222                 COMMUNICATION SERVICES                              798.30

                    110-223                 AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES                                  74.76

                    110-224                 POLICE BUILDINGS                                  2,364.70

                    110-241                 FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN.                            3,939.45

                    110-261                 CODE ENFORCEMENT ADMIN                                4.22

                    110-310                 PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN                                  252.42

                    110-320                 STREETS                                          14,453.25

                    110-323                 SIDEWALKS & CROSSWALKS                            1,604.73

                    110-326                 STREET LIGHTING                                     419.64

                    110-328                 STORM DRAINAGE                                        6.88

                    110-331                 STREET CLEANING                                   3,620.54

                    110-332                 MOSQUITO ABATEMENT                                3,400.00

                    110-335                 YARD WASTE COLLECTION                                31.67

                    110-370                 CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION                             129.11

                    110-381                 CUSTODIAL SERVICES                                   32.61

                    110-383                 BURGESS OSBORNE                                     486.16

                    110-384                 RAILROAD DEPOT                                      162.50

                    110-385                 PARKING LOTS                                         38.34

                    110-388                 GARMENT FACTORY                                       8.56

                    110-511                 PARK ADMINISTRATION                                 150.54

                    110-512                 LAKE ADMINISTRATION                               1,052.55

                    110-521                 DEMARS CENTER                                        91.51

                    110-541                 PETERSON PARK                                     1,977.50

                    110-542                 LAWSON PARK                                         741.75

                    110-544                 CUNNINGHAM PARK                                      36.47

                    110-551                 BOYS COMPLEX                                        139.84

                    110-552                 GIRLS COMPLEX                                       668.04

                    110-553                 JR FOOTBALL COMPLEX                                 995.89

                    110-555                 KINZEL FIELD                                          6.42

                    110-556                 T-BALL COMPLEX                                      398.86

                    110-561                 EAST CAMPGROUND                                   1,454.52

                    110-563                 MARINA AREA                                         446.35

                    110-564                 BEACH AREA                                          289.25

                    110-652                 SOUTH RT45 BUSINESS DISTR                         8,122.39

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    110  TOTAL              GENERAL FUND                                     56,677.57

                    122-653                 HOTEL TAX ADMINISTRATION                          8,141.44

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    122  TOTAL              HOTEL TAX FUND                                    8,141.44

                    123-581                 FESTIVAL ADMINISTRATION                              24.58



 8/30/2007  2:37 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    28

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    123-582                 JULY 4TH FIREWORKS                                   20.00

                    123-584                 BAGELFEST                                         4,709.93

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    123  TOTAL              FESTIVAL MGMT FUND                                4,754.51

                    125                     NON-DEPARTMENTAL                                    481.35

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    125  TOTAL              INSURANCE & TORT JDGMNT                             481.35

                    130                     NON-DEPARTMENTAL                                345,000.00

                    130-321                 STREETS                                         213,782.20

                    130-328                 STORM DRAINAGE                                      900.00

                    130-608                 YMCA LAND ACQUISITION                             1,013.76

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    130  TOTAL              CAPITAL PROJECT FUND                            560,695.96

                    211-351                 RESERVOIRS & WTR SOURCES                          1,594.38

                    211-352                 RESTRICTED RELIANT EXPS                          19,103.95

                    211-353                 WATER TREATMENT PLANT                            13,999.05

                    211-354                 WATER DISTRIBUTION                                1,396.54

                    211-355                 ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION                             790.91

                    211-356                 ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL                          1,248.28

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    211  TOTAL              WATER FUND                                       38,133.11

                    212                     NON-DEPARTMENTAL                                     50.16

                    212-342                 SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM                             516.32

                    212-343                 SEWER LIFT STATIONS                                 487.81

                    212-344                 WASTEWATER TREATMNT PLANT                       204,787.18

                    212-345                 ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION                             790.91

                    212-346                 ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL                            947.83

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    212  TOTAL              SEWER FUND                                      207,580.21

                    213-361                 MAINTENANCE & OPERATIONS                         10,934.23

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    213  TOTAL              CEMETERY FUND                                    10,934.23

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                            ** TOTAL **                     887,398.38



 8/30/2007  2:37 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    29

 

                                                           *** PROJECT TOTALS ***

               PROJECT                              LINE ITEM                                           AMOUNT

 

               127 LAKE PARADISE CLEAN LAKES        500      OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                   927.17

                                                    501      ENGINEERING - (DESIGN PHASE)            11,102.14

                                                    700      PROPERTY (CAPITAL ASSETS)                7,074.64

                                                                     ** PROJECT 127 TOTAL **         19,103.95

 

               146 WWTP AUTOM & MCC REPL            700      Property (Capital Assets)              186,153.26

                                                                     ** PROJECT 146 TOTAL **        186,153.26

 

    NO ERRORS



 8/30/2007  2:43 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     1

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: MFTBK

FUND      : 121  MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND

DEPARTMENT: 321  STREETS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      8/16/2007 THRU  8/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-024110 TREASURER, STATE OF IL I-101460             121 5321-730        IMPROVEMENTS : TREASURER, STATE OF  090448      67,174.42

 

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-68734              121 5321-351        CONCRETE     : WESTVIEW DRIVE       090449       2,956.23

 

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-0900-9             121 5321-359        OTHER STREET : PAINT                090333          57.54

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-1274-8B            121 5321-359        OTHER STREET : PAINT                090333          79.45

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-5222-8             121 5321-359        OTHER STREET : PAINT                090333          28.77

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 321   STREETS                  TOTAL:      70,296.41

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-003200 BIGGS ELECTRIC CO      I-005427             121 5327-359        OTHER STREET : BULBS                090447         386.40

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 327   TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES  TOTAL:         386.40

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 121   MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND      TOTAL:      70,682.81

                                                                                                 REPORT GRAND TOTAL:      70,682.81



 8/30/2007  2:43 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     2

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

2007-2008 121-5321-351        CONCRETE                        2,956.23      15,200       3,466.70-  Y

          121-5321-359        OTHER STREET MTCE SUPPLIES        165.76           0         165.76-  Y

          121-5321-730        IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL     67,174.42     445,350     336,502.45

          121-5327-359        OTHER STREET MAINT SUPPLIE        386.40       7,500       5,545.49

                                TOTAL:                       70,682.81

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    121-321                 STREETS                                          70,296.41

                    121-327                 TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES                             386.40

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    121  TOTAL              MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND                              70,682.81

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                            ** TOTAL **                      70,682.81

    NO ERRORS



 8/30/2007  2:41 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     1

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: DDBNK

FUND      : 221  HEALTH INSURANCE FUND

DEPARTMENT: 412  HEALTH PLAN ADMIN

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      8/16/2007 THRU  8/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000276 DELTA DENTAL           I-200708282032       221 5412-211        HEALTH PLAN A: DELTA DENTAL         000000       1,278.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 412   HEALTH PLAN ADMIN        TOTAL:       1,278.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000276 DELTA DENTAL           I-200708281989       221 5415-211        DENTAL CLAIMS: DELTA DENTAL         000000         684.80

01-000276 DELTA DENTAL           I-200708282032       221 5415-211        DENTAL CLAIMS: DELTA DENTAL         000000       3,908.06

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 415   DENTAL CLAIMS            TOTAL:       4,592.86

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 221   HEALTH INSURANCE FUND    TOTAL:       5,870.86

                                                                                                 REPORT GRAND TOTAL:       5,870.86



 8/30/2007  2:41 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     2

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

2007-2008 221-5412-211        HEALTH PLAN ADMINISTRATION      1,278.00     160,000     114,401.36

          221-5415-211        DENTAL CLAIMS                   4,592.86      80,000      49,435.16

                                TOTAL:                        5,870.86

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    221-412                 HEALTH PLAN ADMIN                                 1,278.00

                    221-415                 DENTAL CLAIMS                                     4,592.86

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    221  TOTAL              HEALTH INSURANCE FUND                             5,870.86

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                            ** TOTAL **                       5,870.86

    NO ERRORS



 8/30/2007  2:45 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     1

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: PCBNK

FUND      : 221  HEALTH INSURANCE FUND

DEPARTMENT: 413  MEDICAL CLAIMS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      8/16/2007 THRU  8/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000219 CARLE FOUNDATION       I-200708302090       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: CARLE FOUNDATION     604830         119.88

 

01-000250 CARLE CLINIC ASSOC     I-200708281992       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: CARLE CLINIC ASSOC   604793         394.26

01-000250 CARLE CLINIC ASSOC     I-200708302089       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: CARLE CLINIC ASSOC   604829          34.36

 

01-000251 CHRISTIE CLINIC ASSOC  I-200708281994       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: CHRISTIE CLINIC ASSO 604795         490.63

 

01-000252 MARIA HORVAT MD        I-200708282002       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: MARIA HORVAT MD      604803         186.56

01-000252 MARIA HORVAT MD        I-200708302097       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: MARIA HORVAT MD      604837         243.81

 

01-000254 LAKELAND RADIOLOGISTS  I-200708282008       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: LAKELAND RADIOLOGIST 604809         560.02

01-000254 LAKELAND RADIOLOGISTS  I-200708302102       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: LAKELAND RADIOLOGIST 604842         523.18

 

01-000255 SARAH BUSH-HEALTH INS  I-200708282014       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: SARAH BUSH-HEALTH IN 604815       6,141.05

01-000255 SARAH BUSH-HEALTH INS  I-200708302107       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: SARAH BUSH-HEALTH IN 604847       7,924.24

 

01-000256 SBL PHYSICIAN BILLING  I-200708282015       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: SBL PHYSICIAN BILLIN 604816       4,249.52

01-000256 SBL PHYSICIAN BILLING  I-200708302108       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: SBL PHYSICIAN BILLIN 604848       2,598.41

 

01-000257 SELVIDGE CHIROPRACTIC  I-200708282018       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: SELVIDGE CHIROPRACTI 604819          54.67

01-000257 SELVIDGE CHIROPRACTIC  I-200708302110       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: SELVIDGE CHIROPRACTI 604850          80.91

 

01-000262 JAMES WILLIAMS CHIROPR I-200708282005       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: JAMES WILLIAMS CHIRO 604806          73.08

 

01-000265 JAMES KOHLMANN         I-200708282006       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: JAMES KOHLMANN       604807         102.19

01-000265 JAMES KOHLMANN         I-200708302100       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: JAMES KOHLMANN       604840          28.18

 

01-000277 JERRY L BOYD PHD       I-200708302088       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: JERRY L BOYD PHD     604828          64.00

 

01-000280 ST JOHNS HOSPITAL-SPRI I-200708282021       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: ST JOHNS HOSPITAL-SP 604822          45.23

01-000280 ST JOHNS HOSPITAL-SPRI I-200708302112       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: ST JOHNS HOSPITAL-SP 604852           8.12

 

01-000286 TERRY A WARD           I-200708282025       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: TERRY A WARD         604826          90.47

 

01-000296 MARSHALL CLINIC EFFING I-200708282009       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: MARSHALL CLINIC EFFI 604810          33.01

01-000296 MARSHALL CLINIC EFFING I-200708302103       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: MARSHALL CLINIC EFFI 604843          74.39

 

01-000308 LELAND E MCNEILL MD    I-200708282011       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: LELAND E MCNEILL MD  604812         287.58

01-000308 LELAND E MCNEILL MD    I-200708302104       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: LELAND E MCNEILL MD  604844         136.02

 

01-000311 UROLOGY ASSOCIATES     I-200708282023       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: UROLOGY ASSOCIATES   604824       2,140.10

01-000311 UROLOGY ASSOCIATES     I-200708302116       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: UROLOGY ASSOCIATES   604856         420.81

 

01-000313 HELMS CHIROPRACTIC     I-200708282000       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: HELMS CHIROPRACTIC   604801          22.65

 

01-000321 DONALD FREESMEIER DC   I-200708281997       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: DONALD FREESMEIER DC 604798          44.07



 8/30/2007  2:45 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     2

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: PCBNK

FUND      : 221  HEALTH INSURANCE FUND

DEPARTMENT: 413  MEDICAL CLAIMS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      8/16/2007 THRU  8/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000321 DONALD FREESMEIER DC   I-200708302095       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: DONALD FREESMEIER DC 604835          88.14

 

01-000322 WILLIAM HOUSEWORTH MD  I-200708282003       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: WILLIAM HOUSEWORTH M 604804         219.75

01-000322 WILLIAM HOUSEWORTH MD  I-200708302098       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: WILLIAM HOUSEWORTH M 604838         414.15

 

01-000323 HUTTI CHIROPRACTIC CEN I-200708282004       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: HUTTI CHIROPRACTIC C 604805          33.29

 

01-000325 CARL JOHNSON MD        I-200708302099       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: CARL JOHNSON MD      604839          76.02

 

01-000326 HARIKRISHNA P PATEL MD I-200708302105       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: HARIKRISHNA P PATEL  604845         385.50

 

01-000327 PRAIRIE CARDIOVASCULAR I-200708282012       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: PRAIRIE CARDIOVASCUL 604813         130.82

01-000327 PRAIRIE CARDIOVASCULAR I-200708302106       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: PRAIRIE CARDIOVASCUL 604846          25.82

 

01-000328 WILLIAM G SCHUBERT MD  I-200708282016       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: WILLIAM G SCHUBERT M 604817         169.30

01-000328 WILLIAM G SCHUBERT MD  I-200708302109       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: WILLIAM G SCHUBERT M 604849          93.53

 

01-000330 SUPERIOR MEDICAL EQUIP I-200708282022       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: SUPERIOR MEDICAL EQU 604823          50.01

01-000330 SUPERIOR MEDICAL EQUIP I-200708302113       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: SUPERIOR MEDICAL EQU 604853           2.42

 

01-000334 SIU PHYSICIANS         I-200708282019       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: SIU PHYSICIANS       604820         279.67

 

01-000381 VA ILLIANA HCS         I-200708282024       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: VA ILLIANA HCS       604825          16.44

01-000381 VA ILLIANA HCS         I-200708302117       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: VA ILLIANA HCS       604857          27.03

 

01-000530 DON R SCOTT MD         I-200708282017       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: DON R SCOTT MD       604818          25.24

 

01-000537 BARNES JEWISH HOSPITAL I-200708281991       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: BARNES JEWISH HOSPIT 604792           8.20

 

01-000538 HANGER PROSTH & ORTH-M I-200708281999       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: HANGER PROSTH & ORTH 604800         393.37

 

01-000579 LABORATORY CORP OF AME I-200708282007       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: LABORATORY CORP OF A 604808           6.41

01-000579 LABORATORY CORP OF AME I-200708302101       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: LABORATORY CORP OF A 604841          38.36

 

01-000690 BASHAR ALZAHABI MD     I-200708281990       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: BASHAR ALZAHABI MD   604791         177.45

 

01-000723 CARLE PHYSICIAN SERVIC I-200708281993       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: CARLE PHYSICIAN SERV 604794          57.18

01-000723 CARLE PHYSICIAN SERVIC I-200708302091       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: CARLE PHYSICIAN SERV 604831         346.32

 

01-000748 MATTOON EYE CENTER     I-200708282010       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: MATTOON EYE CENTER   604811           6.88

 

01-001312 GIBSON AREA HOSPITAL   I-200708281998       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: GIBSON AREA HOSPITAL 604799          45.94

 

01-001456 PREMIERE PHYSICAL THER I-200708282013       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: PREMIERE PHYSICAL TH 604814          97.29

 

01-001622 HIGHLAND PARK CVS LLC  I-200708282001       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: HIGHLAND PARK CVS LL 604802          14.78

 



 8/30/2007  2:45 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     3

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: PCBNK

FUND      : 221  HEALTH INSURANCE FUND

DEPARTMENT: 413  MEDICAL CLAIMS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      8/16/2007 THRU  8/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-001636 JOSEPH SOLAN DC        I-200708282020       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: JOSEPH SOLAN DC      604821         134.10

01-001636 JOSEPH SOLAN DC        I-200708302111       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: JOSEPH SOLAN DC      604851           6.24

 

01-001743 TRI LAKES EYE CENTER   I-200708302114       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: TRI LAKES EYE CENTER 604854         117.30

 

01-001788 JAMES A FILIPIAK DC    I-200708281996       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: JAMES A FILIPIAK DC  604797          90.90

01-001788 JAMES A FILIPIAK DC    I-200708302093       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: JAMES A FILIPIAK DC  604833          17.66

 

01-001795 FL JOINT REPLACEMENT C I-200708302094       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: FL JOINT REPLACEMENT 604834         213.33

 

01-001796 GLACIER ONCOLOGY MD    I-200708302096       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: GLACIER ONCOLOGY MD  604836          11.13

 

01-001797 TRI LAKES SURGERY CENT I-200708302115       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: TRI LAKES SURGERY CE 604855         193.58

 

01-050850 DR ZAVERI & ASSCOIATES I-200708281995       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: DR ZAVERI & ASSCOIAT 604796          93.22

01-050850 DR ZAVERI & ASSCOIATES I-200708302092       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: DR ZAVERI & ASSCOIAT 604832          41.45

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 413   MEDICAL CLAIMS           TOTAL:      31,319.62

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000258 CAREMARK INC           I-200708282026       221 5414-211        RX CLAIMS    : CAREMARK INC         604827      10,699.66

01-000258 CAREMARK INC           I-200708302118       221 5414-211        RX CLAIMS    : CAREMARK INC         604858       7,221.72

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 414   RX CLAIMS                TOTAL:      17,921.38

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 221   HEALTH INSURANCE FUND    TOTAL:      49,241.00

                                                                                                 REPORT GRAND TOTAL:      49,241.00



 8/30/2007  2:45 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     4

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

2007-2008 221-5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIMS                 31,319.62   1,050,000     631,360.01

          221-5414-211        RX CLAIMS                      17,921.38     460,000     314,411.22

                                TOTAL:                       49,241.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    221-413                 MEDICAL CLAIMS                                   31,319.62

                    221-414                 RX CLAIMS                                        17,921.38

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    221  TOTAL              HEALTH INSURANCE FUND                            49,241.00

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                            ** TOTAL **                      49,241.00

    NO ERRORS



 8-29-2007  9:03 AM                               REFUND CHECK REGISTER                                                  PAGE:    1

Packet:  9891 - Refunds From Zone zz                                                                 G/L POSTING DATE:  8/29/2007

 

                                                                  --------CHECK-------- ----------DEPOSIT----------

---ACCOUNT---- ------------NAME----------- --DATE-- ----TYPE----- NUMBER ----AMOUNT---- CODE -RECEIPT-- --AMOUNT--- ----MESSAGE-----

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-10000-11    SLIGAR, KATHRYN E            8/29/07 FINAL BILL     90317         9.81CR  100 29112          60.00CR

01-11100-02    HASKETT, ANGELIA K           8/29/07 FINAL BILL     90318        56.88CR  100 29036          60.00CR

01-13800-04    STARWALT, AMANDA J           8/29/07 FINAL BILL     90319        38.27CR  100 28760          60.00CR

04-16010-09    KNICLEY, JORDAN M            8/29/07 FINAL BILL     90320        18.36CR  100 31037          60.00CR

05-15100-03    MARTIN, TARA M               8/29/07 FINAL BILL     90321        26.01CR  100 29798          60.00CR

10-18200-08    PETERS, STEPHANIE L          8/29/07 FINAL BILL     90322        10.28CR  100 32100          60.00CR

14-22200-10    BROWN, DARLA J               8/29/07 FINAL BILL     90323        56.50CR  100 29559          60.00CR

19-21110-06    THOMPSON, LARRY L            8/29/07 FINAL BILL     90324        60.00CR  100 32211          60.00CR

23-04510-09    BRANDVOLD, ANGELA L          8/29/07 FINAL BILL     90325        29.57CR  100 27873          60.00CR

24-03900-05    BROWN, CLINTON A             8/29/07 FINAL BILL     90326        23.00CR  100 30890          60.00CR

24-20300-10    BAHRNS, SCOTT K              8/29/07 FINAL BILL     90327        52.38CR  100 30889          60.00CR

25-27400-07    SMITH, DANIEL J              8/29/07 FINAL BILL     90328        12.79CR  100 32004          60.00CR

41-00500-13    LOS, ANDREA N                8/29/07 FINAL BILL     90329        54.82CR  100 32460          60.00CR

41-05100-09    COTTRELL, JEREMY D           8/29/07 FINAL BILL     90330        45.13CR  100 32420          60.00CR

41-05600-08    UNIQUE HOMES PROP            8/29/07 FINAL BILL     90331        38.34CR  000                 0.00

41-20500-10    SWANSTROM, PAIGE E           8/29/07 FINAL BILL     90332        42.95CR  100 31115          60.00CR



 
 
   
  
 

NEW BUSINESS: 
City of Mattoon 

Council Decision Request 

MEETING DATE: 09/04/07    CDR NO: 2007-786         SUBJECT: Purchase of three (3) 
                          unmarked vehicles for use by                
                                                                                           Administration and Detectives 
of                                                                                                        Mattoon Police Dept.                                                                               
SUBMITTAL DATE:     August 21, 2007 
 
SUBMITTED BY:           Larry L. Metzelaars, Chief of Police 
 
APPROVED FOR            Alan L. Gilmore                         
COUNCIL AGENDA:     City Administrator                                             Date 
 
EXHIBITS (If applicable): 
 

EXPENDITURE                    AMOUNT                                CONTINGENCY 
FUNDING 
ESTIMATE: $58,350.00     BUDGETED: $58,350.00        REQUIRED:   N/A 

 
IF IT IS THE WISH OF THE COUNCIL TO SUPPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
CONTAINED IN THIS REPORT, THE FOLLOWING MOTION IS SUGGESTED: 
 

“I move that the City Council authorize the Chief of Police to purchase three 2007 
Chevrolet Impala Administrative Sedans from Miles Chevrolet, Inc., Decatur, Illinois, at 
prices established under the State of Illinois joint purchase agreement for use by 
Administration and Detectives.” 
 
SUMMARY OF THE TOPIC FOR WHICH A COUNCIL DECISION IS REQUESTED: 
 

 Due to high mileage and increasingly developing mechanical problems, the 
Mattoon Police Department has, at the Council’s direction, retired and sold at public 
auction 6-2-07, two unmarked detectives’ cars. Vehicles sold were: 
 

 1995 Pontiac Grand Prix, white - 12 years old and needed costly transmission 
replacement 
1995 Oldsmobile Ciera, light blue - 12 years old and was not in good mechanical 

condition 
 

At this time, Chief Larry Metzelaars recommends that three 2007 Chevrolet 
Impala sedans be purchased for use by detectives, two of which are replacement vehicles 
and the third being necessary since Capt. Jeff Branson has recently been assigned to 
Detective duties.  Miles Chevrolet has only a very limited number of Administrative Pkg 
Impalas available this late in the model year, and there are currently three suitable 
vehicles available under the State of Illinois Joint Purchase Agreement, one with 
Administrative Pkg #2 at a cost of $18,566.00 and two with Administrative Pkg #3 at a 
cost of $19,892.00 each, for a total purchase price of $58,350.00.  This purchase was 
anticipated and is included in the Police Department’s 2007/2008 budget.  



Printed 8/29/2007 BLR 09111 (Rev. 11/06) 

 

 
 Resolution for Improvement by 
 Municipality Under the Illinois  
 Highway Code 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the  City Council of the 
 Council or President and Board of Trustees  

City of  Mattoon Illinois 
City, Town or Village  

that the following described street(s) be improved under the Illinois Highway Code: 
 

Name of Thoroughfare Route From To 
Various Locations N/A N/A N/A 
                        
                        
                        
                        
                        
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, 
1.  That the proposed improvement shall consist of  Resurfacing FAU 7666, FAU 7669, FAU 7686, FAU 7681 
 
Lapp Project 
 
      
 
      
 
      and shall be constructed Variable wide 
 
and be designated as Section 05-00128-00-RS  
 
2.  That there is hereby appropriated the (additional   Yes    No) sum of Twenty-five thousand and 00 cents 
 
      Dollars ( $25,000.00 ) for the 
 
improvement of said section from the municipality’s allotment of Motor Fuel Tax funds. 
 
3.  That work shall be done by Contract ; and, 
 Specify Contract or Day Labor  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk is hereby directed to transmit two certified copies of this resolution to the 
district office of the Department of Transportation. 
 

  

Approved  I,  Susan J. O'Brien Clerk in and for the 
  
  City of Mattoon 

  City, Town or Village  
   County of  Coles , hereby certify the 

Date   
  foregoing to be a true, perfect and complete copy of a resolution adopted  

  
  by the City Council  
  Council or President and Board of Trustees  

Department of Transportation   at a meeting on September 4, 2007 
  Date 
  IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal this 
  
         day of        

Regional Engineer   

 (SEAL)  
  
   

Clerk   City, Town, or Village Clerk 
 

“Supplemental” 

        CITY OF MATTOON 
RESOLUTION NO. 2007-2713



Printed 8/29/2007 BLR 09111 (Rev. 11/06) 

 

 
 Resolution for Improvement by 
 Municipality Under the Illinois  
 Highway Code 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the  City Council of the 
 Council or President and Board of Trustees  

City of  Mattoon Illinois 
City, Town or Village  

that the following described street(s) be improved under the Illinois Highway Code: 
 

Name of Thoroughfare Route From To 
Various Locations N/A N/A N/A 
                        
                        
                        
                        
                        
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, 
1.  That the proposed improvement shall consist of  PCC sidewalk 5 inch (various locations within the City) 
 
      
 
      
 
      
 
      and shall be constructed 5 feet wide 
 
and be designated as Section 05-00133-00-SW  
 
2.  That there is hereby appropriated the (additional   Yes    No) sum of Five hundred six dollars and 32 cents 
 
      Dollars ( $506.32 ) for the 
 
improvement of said section from the municipality’s allotment of Motor Fuel Tax funds. 
 
3.  That work shall be done by Contract ; and, 
 Specify Contract or Day Labor  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk is hereby directed to transmit two certified copies of this resolution to the 
district office of the Department of Transportation. 
 

  

Approved  I,  Susan J. O'Brien Clerk in and for the 
  
  City of Mattoon 

  City, Town or Village  
   County of  Coles , hereby certify the 

Date   
  foregoing to be a true, perfect and complete copy of a resolution adopted  

  
  by the City Council  
  Council or President and Board of Trustees  

Department of Transportation   at a meeting on September 4, 2007 
  Date 
  IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal this 
  
         day of        

Regional Engineer   

 (SEAL)  
  
   

Clerk   City, Town, or Village Clerk 
 

“Supplemental” 

    CITY OF MATTOON 
RESOLUTION 2007-2714



 
 
   
  
 

City of Mattoon 
Council Decision Request 

MEETING DATE:  9/4/07 CDR NO:  2007-787       
 
SUBJECT:  Approving a contract with NeCo Asphalt for Oil and Chipping in 
                    commercial alleys (07-00156-00-SC) 

 
SUBMITTAL DATE: 8/29/07  
 
SUBMITTED BY: David Wortman, Public Works Director  
 
EXHIBITS (If applicable): January 2007 Oil and chip MFT Bid from NeCo  
        

EXPENDITURE   AMOUNT   CONTINGENCY FUNDING 
ESTIMATE: 26,853    BUDGETED: $75,000    REQUIRED: N/A      

 
IF IT IS THE WISH OF THE COUNCIL TO SUPPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
CONTAINED IN THIS REPORT, THE FOLLOWING MOTION IS SUGGESTED: 

 
“I move to authorize the mayor to sign a contract extending the 2007 MFT Street 

Maintenance unit prices for oil and chipping from NeCo Asphalt of Charleston in the 
amount of $26,853 for oil and chipping in commercial alleys” 

 
SUMMARY OF THE TOPIC FOR WHICH A COUNCIL DECISION IS REQUESTED: 
 
In January of this year the City accepted bids for the annual street maintenance program. 
In those bids NeCo Asphalt was the low bidder for oil and chipping. NeCo has agreed to 
extend the same unit price from that bid to this project. I believe accepting the same unit 
prices will give us the lowest possible cost for this project. The table below gives the 
estimated quantity and cost for the project. 
 
Items Unit Quantity Unit Price Total Cost

Bituminous Material (Cover & Seal Coat) gal 13,100        1.74          22,794.00   

Cover Coat Agg. (CA-14) Spread Only ton 180             9.90          1,782.00     

Cover Coat Agg. (CA-16) Spread Only ton 30               9.90          297.00        

Seal Coat Agg. (CA-14) Spread Only ton 180             9.90          1,782.00     

Seal Coat Agg. (Boiler Slag) Spread Only ton 20               9.90          198.00        

TOTAL 26,853.00    
 
There is also a contract for the placement of milling for this project with Howell Asphalt 
of Mattoon. That contract is in the amount of $21,900.00. 
  
There is $75,000 total budgeted for this project in the Capital Improvements Fund in line 
item 130-5321-730.



 

                    
 



 

                    

City of Mattoon 
Council Decision Request 

________________________________________________________________________ 
MEETING DATE:   09/04/07          CDR NO: 2007-788 SUBJECT: Promotion of Capt. Jeffrey 

M. Branson to Deputy Chief of Police 
effective Sept. 15, 2007 
 

SUBMITTAL DATE:    08/29/07 
 
SUBMITTED BY:    David Griffith, Chief Designate, Mattoon Police Dept. 
 
APPROVED FOR    Alan L. Gilmore   _____________________ 
COUNCIL AGENDA:   City Administrator       Date 
 
EXHIBITS (If applicable):  
                                              

EXPENDITURE                AMOUNT           CONTINGENCY FUNDING 
ESTIMATE: $71,903.00 BUDGETED: $74,200.36      REQUIRED:         N/A 

 
IF IT IS THE WISH OF THE COUNCIL TO SUPPORT RECOMMENDATIONS CONTAINED 
IN THIS REPORT, THE FOLLOWING MOTION IS SUGGESTED: 
 

“I move that the City Council appoint Captain Jeffrey M. Branson of the Mattoon Police 
Department to the position of Deputy Chief of Police of the Mattoon Police Department 
effective September 15, 2007.” 

 
SUMMARY OF THE TOPIC FOR WHICH A COUNCIL DECISION IS REQUESTED: 
 

Former Deputy Chief David Griffith was appointed as Chief of the Mattoon Police 
Department effective September 15, 2007.  In order to maintain the appropriate chain of 
command and smooth operation of Police Department business, it is essential at this time to 
fill the vacancy of Deputy Chief of Police.   Chief Designate David Griffith recommends that 
Captain Jeffrey M. Branson be appointed as Deputy Chief of Police.  Capt. Branson has been 
employed by Mattoon Police Department since July 1, 1989, and has considerable experience 
in all phases of police work including regular patrol, supervision in patrol, and Detective 
Division.  During his 18-year career, he has held each rank, and he has effectively and 
consistently demonstrated his leadership abilities.  His knowledge and professionalism will 
be an asset to the Mattoon Police Department in the position as Deputy Chief of Police. 

 
The above expenditure estimate includes salary and benefits package for the rank of Deputy 
Chief of Police. 



 

                    

 
City of Mattoon 

Council Decision Request 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
MEETING DATE: 09/04/07  CDR NO:  2007-789   SUBJECT: Promotion of  

Lt. Adam Weinstock to rank of 
Captain effective Sept. 15, 2007 

SUBMITTAL DATE:   08/29/07 
 
SUBMITTED BY:    David L. Griffith, Chief Designate, Mattoon Police Dept. 
 
APPROVED FOR    Alan L. Gilmore   _____________________ 
COUNCIL AGENDA:   City Administrator       Date 
 
EXHIBITS (If applicable):  
                                              

EXPENDITURE                AMOUNT           CONTINGENCY FUNDING 
ESTIMATE: $ 71,505.50       BUDGETED: $ 71,505.50   REQUIRED:         N/A 

 
IF IT IS THE WISH OF THE COUNCIL TO SUPPORT RECOMMENDATIONS CONTAINED 
IN THIS REPORT, THE FOLLOWING MOTION IS SUGGESTED: 
 

“I move that the City Council promote Lt. Adam J. Weinstock to the rank of Captain 
              in the Mattoon Police Department effective September 15, 2007.” 
 
SUMMARY OF THE TOPIC FOR WHICH A COUNCIL DECISION IS REQUESTED: 
 

 Effective September 15, 2007, Capt. Jeff Branson will be promoted to the rank of Deputy 
Chief of Police leaving an opening in the rank of Captain. 
 

In order to maintain an effective command structure, it is the recommendation of Chief 
Designate David Griffith that the Captain’s rank be filled.  The Mattoon Board of Fire and Police 
Commissioners has advised that Lt. Adam Weinstock is the next eligible candidate for that position. 
Chief Designate Griffith recommends that Lt. Weinstock be promoted to the rank of Captain 
effective September 15, 2007.   
 

The above expenditure estimate includes salary and benefits package for rank of Captain. 
 

  



 

                    

City of Mattoon 
Council Decision Request 

MEETING DATE: 09/04/07    CDR NO: 2007-790  SUBJECT: Promotion of Sgt. Gary Kepley 
         to rank of Lieutenant effective 
         Sept. 15, 2007 

SUBMITTAL DATE:   08/29/07 
 
SUBMITTED BY:    David L. Griffith, Chief Designate, Mattoon Police Dept. 
 
APPROVED FOR     Alan L. Gilmore   _____________________ 
COUNCIL AGENDA:   City Administrator       Date 
 
EXHIBITS (If applicable): 
                                            

EXPENDITURE                AMOUNT           CONTINGENCY FUNDING 
ESTIMATE: $ 62,681.48       BUDGETED: $62,681.48     REQUIRED:         N/A 

 
IF IT IS THE WISH OF THE COUNCIL TO SUPPORT RECOMMENDATIONS CONTAINED 
IN THIS REPORT, THE FOLLOWING MOTION IS SUGGESTED: 
 

“I move that the City Council promote Sgt. Gary Kepley to the rank of Lieutenant 
in the Mattoon Police Department effective September 15, 2007.” 

 
SUMMARY OF THE TOPIC FOR WHICH A COUNCIL DECISION IS REQUESTED: 
 

 An opening in the rank of Lieutenant will when Lt. Adam Weinstock is appointed to the rank 
of Captain on September 15, 2007.  In order to maintain the appropriate supervisory staff level at 
Mattoon Police Department and to satisfy the terms of the Police Officers’ Contract with the City of 
Mattoon, it is necessary to fill the vacant rank at this time.  The Mattoon Board of Fire and Police 
Commissioners has advised Chief Designate David Griffith that Sgt. Gary Kepley is the next eligible 
candidate on the promotional list to fill this vacancy.    
 

The above estimated expenditure includes salary and benefits package for the rank of 
Lieutenant. 



 

                    

City of Mattoon 
Council Decision Request 

MEETING DATE   09/04/2007     CDR NO:  2007-791  SUBJECT: Mid-Town TIF 
Incentive Review Committee 
Recommendations 
 

SUBMITTAL DATE:  8/31/2007 
 
SUBMITTED BY:                Alan Gilmore, City Administrator 
 
EXHIBITS (If applicable):   Mid-Town TIF Obligation Spreadsheet   
             

EXPENDITURE  FY-2009 AMOUNT   CONTINGENCY FUNDING 
ESTIMATE:      $8,000.00  BUDGETED:  N/A       REQ: $72,000 thru FY 2018      

 

IF IT IS THE WISH OF THE COUNCIL TO SUPPORT RECOMMENDATIONS CONTAINED 

IN THIS REPORT, THE FOLLOWING MOTION IS SUGGESTED: 

 
I move to approve the recommendations of the Mid-Town Incentive Review Committee for a grant 
to Keith Summers for the building located at 1810 Charleston Avenue in an amount not to exceed 
$80,000.   

 
SUMMARY OF THE TOPIC FOR WHICH A COUNCIL DECISION IS REQUESTED: 
 
Mr. Keith Summers is the owner of the property located at 1810 Charleston Avenue. This property is located 
within the Mid-Town TIF District. 
 
This project involves a $400,000 renovation of the former Upchurch and Associates Building to accommodate 
the relocation of the Little Mexico restaurant.  Mr. Summers is requesting a TIF Grant in the amount of 
$80,000 as follows: 
 

Façade Improvements $36,000 
Building Renovations $25,000 
Emergency Repairs $19,000 

Total: $80,000 
 
The committee recommends an annual subsidy grant of $8,000 disbursed over a term of 10 years commencing 
in the month of September 2009 and continuing through September of 2018. 
  

 



 

                    

    2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 201

   
Annual TIF Payouts 

--> 
 
$53,708.74  

 $  
14,297.51  

        
69,061  

        
60,507  

        
60,507  

        
58,007  

        
46,107  

        
46,107  

        
46,107  

        
46,107

   
Annual TIF Income --

> 
 
$85,954.66  

 
$150,208.26          

              

              

Address Applicant Description Project Total 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 201

Lake Land Blvd Mark Dust Demolition Grant  $      40,000.00               4,000           4,000           4,000           4,000           4,000           4,000           4,000           4

1510 Broadway Dr. Friesemeyer Façade/Structural  $      47,000.00    
 $    
9,400.00           9,400           9,400           9,400           9,400          

1410 Broadway Tony Eaton 
Building 
Renovation  $      50,000.00  

 
$50,000.00                   

1412 Broadway Tony Eaton Façade/Structural  $      50,000.00               5,000           5,000           5,000           5,000           5,000           5,000           5,000           5

1412 Broadway Tony Eaton Interest Subsidy  $      15,000.00               1,500           1,500           1,500           1,500           1,500           1,500           1,500           1

1414 Broadway Jeff Eaton Façade/Structural  $      38,620.00               3,862           3,862           3,862           3,862           3,862           3,862           3,862           3

1424 Broadway John Chevas Structural Repairs  $       3,255.00    
 $    
3,255.00                  

1609 Broadway Mike Kallis Architectural  $       5,000.00               5,000                

1416 Broadway Apostolic Church Façade/Structural  $      40,444.80               4,044           4,044           4,044           4,044           4,044           4,044           4,044           4
1400 - 1404 
Broadway Cory Sanders Façade/Structural  $      54,679.50               5,468           5,468           5,468           5,468           5,468           5,468           5,468           5

1601 Broadway Janice Moritz Façade/Structural  $       5,000.00               5,000                

1824 Broadway Robert Duncan Façade/Structural  $      28,680.00               2,868           2,868           2,868           2,868           2,868           2,868           2,868           2

1821 Broadway Helen Johnson Façade/Structural  $       5,351.25  
 $  
3,708.74  

 $    
1,642.51                  

1608 Broadway Renee England Façade  $       2,000.00               2,000                

1628 Broadway Steve Hardin Façade/Structural  $      38,185.70               3,819           3,819           3,819           3,819           3,819           3,819           3,819           3

1601 Broadway Janis Moritz Façade/Structural  $       5,000.00               5,000                

1321 Broadway Nathan Burton Engineering  $       5,000.00               5,000           2,500           2,500           2,500          

604 Lake Land Blvd. Meyer/Wortman Demolition/Utilities  $      46,000.00               4,600           4,600           4,600           4,600           4,600           4,600           4,600           4

1321 Broadway Nathan Burton 
Stormwater 
Detention  $       7,500.00      2,500          2,500           2,500            

1400-04 Broadway Cory Sanders Code Compliance  $      29,455.00        2,946 2,946 2,946 2,946.00 2,946 2,946 2

1810 Broadway Keith Summers Façade/Structural $80,000.00        8,000 8,000          8,000  8,000.00 8,000 8,000 8

                            

       $    596,171.25  
 
$53,708.74  

 $  
14,297.51  

 
$69,061.00  

 
$60,506.50  

 
$60,506.50  

 
$58,006.50  

 
$46,107.00  

 
$46,107.00  

 
$46,107.00  

 
$46,10

 



 

                    

 
CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

 
SPECIAL ORDINANCE NO.  2007-1243 

 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE SUBDIVISION PLAT OF WALTON 

SUBDIVISION IN THE CITY OF MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINIOS. 
 
WHEREAS, a request to approve the subdivision plat of Walton Subdivision has 
been present to the City of Mattoon, on behalf of the owner of said real estate; 

 

WHEREAS, the owner of the real estate believes it would be beneficial to the public, for the 
subdivision plat to be approved and recorded; 
  
WHEREAS, the plat is subdividing a lot into two lots and requires an easement for access for 
the new lot. 
  
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois, has 
recommended that said final plat be approved at the August 27, 2007 meeting. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF 
MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 
 
Section 1. Pursuant to enabling authority provided at Section §159.05 of the Mattoon Code of 
Ordinances, the Plat of Walton Subdivision be approved. 
 
Section 2. This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and approval 
by the City Council.  
 
Section 3. This ordinance shall be effective upon its approval as provided by law. 
 
Section 4. The City Clerk shall make and file a duly certified copy of this ordinance with the 
Clerk and Recorder’s Office of Coles County, Illinois.  
 
Upon motion by ______________________, seconded by ________________________, 
adopted this ______ day of ___________________, 2007, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
NAYS (Names):  __________________________________________ 
ABSENT (Names): __________________________________________ 
 
Approved this ____ day of _________, 2007.  
 

___________________________________ 
       Charles E. White, Mayor 



 

                    

       City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________   _______________________________ 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk               J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on _________________________, 2007.  





 

                    

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2007-5237  

 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH THE 

FIRST MID-ILLINOIS BANK & TRUST TO FINANCE $150,000 OVER A TERM OF 
FIVE YEARS TO ACQUIRE VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Mattoon has a need to acquire various equipment and vehicles and the 
equipment and vehicles may be acquired at a cost of approximately $840,000 pursuant to prices 
established by competitive bid or the state joint purchasing agreements; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the equipment and vehicles consists of One (1) Sewer Vactor Truck at $235,000, 
One (1) Sewer Camera Truck at $130,000, One Front End Loader at $118,000, Two (2) Dump 
Trucks and Two (2) Pick-up Trucks at $170,000, One (1) Ambulance at $120,000 and Three (3) 
2007 Chevy Impala model at $58,350; and, 
 
WHEREAS, First Mid-Illinois Bank & Trust has offered the lowest interest rate to finance the 
equipment and vehicles pursuant to a competitive request for proposals solicited and received by 
the deadline established for receiving proposals;  and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council deems that it is in the best interest of the City that a sum not too 
exceed $756,000 be financed over a term of five years to provide the funds to purchase the 
equipment and vehicles.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF 
MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 
 
Section 1.  The Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to sign a “Lease / Purchase Agreement” 
and any other necessary documents with First Mid-Illinois Bank & Trust, the form of which is 
attached and incorporated by reference and to do all other things necessary to give effect thereto.   
 
Section 2.  This ordinance shall be effective upon its passage and approval as provided by law.  
 
Upon motion by ______________________, seconded by ________________________, 
adopted this    day of __________________, 2007, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
NAYS (Names):  __________________________________________ 
ABSENT (Names): __________________________________________ 
 
Approved this ____ day of _________, 2007. 
 

 



 

                    

___________________________________ 
      Charles E. White, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
__________________________  _______________________________ 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on _________________________, 2007. 



 

                    

Request for Proposals 
Equipment Lease Purchase Financing 

 
The City of Mattoon is seeking proposals for lease purchase financing of equipment to be 
acquired for municipal uses.  The City is authorized under the constitution and laws of the State 
of Illinois (65 ILCS 5/1-1-1-1 et seq.) to enter a lease / purchase agreement for equipment 
financing.  The City will use its standard form of lease / purchase agreement, which has been 
approved by the City Attorney & Treasurer for these purposes. A copy of the agreement may be 
secured from the City Attorney & Treasurer (217-258-7932).  The City of Mattoon is a political 
subdivision as defined in Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.  
Interest on this form of equipment financing may be exempt from income taxes.  
 

Terms & Conditions for the Equipment Financing 
 
Equipment:   One (1) Sewer Vactor Truck at $235,000, One (1) Sewer Camera Truck at 

$130,000, One Front End Loader at $118,000, Two (2) Dump Trucks and 
Two (2) Pick-up Trucks at $170,000 and Three (3) 2007 Chevy Impala 
model at $58,350 each pursuant to a competitive bidding processes or unit 
prices established by terms of State of Illinois Joint Purchase Agreement 

 
Amount: Ninety (90) Percent of the total purchase price of the vehicles and 

equipment. Total purchase price of approximately $840,000 with a total 
loan amount of approximately $756,000. 

 
Vendor:  Multiple vendors. 
 
Terms: This will be a multiple draw transaction with the final closing being upon 

the purchase of the final piece of equipment.  The City will pay the 
accrued interest upon the closing of the loan. The term shall be for Five 
(5) Years  

 
Payments:  Annual installment payments beginning one year after closing of the loan. 
 
Collateral:  Security interest (lien) on the equipment purchased vehicles & equipment. 

City will provide comprehensive insurance on the vehicles and equipment 
purchased, but with a $500 deductible 

 
Interest Rate:  The only variable in this competitive solicitation  

Quoted as a percent of the prime rate published in The Wall Street Journal 
on the date of signing the lease purchase agreement  
 

Proposals must be received by 10:00 AM, August 31, 2007.  Proposals must be placed in a 
sealed envelope clearly labeled “Proposal for Equipment Financing” and addressed to J. Preston 
Owen, City Attorney & Treasurer, 208 N 19th Street, Mattoon, Illinois 61938.  
 
Should the Governor of Illinois sign Senate Bill 689 (SB0689), the legislation currently on his 



 

                    

desk allowing Illinois municipalities to borrow funds with a term of not more than Ten (10) 
years, prior to the signing of the final closing we will automatically convert this to a traditional 
commercial secured promissory note.  
 
 
 

Re:   RFP for Equipment Lease Purchase Financing 

 
Fax To:  
 
AL Volk      Russ Spitz 
US Bank      The Bank 
P.O. Box 609     2121 Western Avenue 
Mattoon, IL 61938     Mattoon, IL 61938 
Phone: 258-4226     Phone: 258-8131 
Fax: 234-6440     Fax: 258-8130 
 
Phyllis Karpus     Stan Gilliland 
The First National Bank   First Mid-Illinois Bank & Trust 
P.O. Box 437     P.O. Box 499 
Mattoon, IL 61938    Mattoon, IL 61938 
Phone: 234-7900    Phone:  258-0484 
Fax: 234-7929    Fax: 258-0426 
 
Don Ruston 
Bank of America 
401 West Main  
Salem, IL 62881 
Phone: (888) 852-5000 
Fax: (618) 548-1356 
 
 
 

 
  



 

   
Mayor Commissioners 

Charles E. White David W. Cline 
City Clerk Joseph McKenzie 

Susan J. O’Brien Randy Ervin 
City Attorney & Treasurer David R. Schilling 

 

J. Preston Owen 

Mattoon City Hall 
208 N. 19th Street 

Mattoon, Illinois  61938 
Mayor: 217-234-4633 

City Clerk:  217-235-5654 
Fax: 217-258-6435  

 

 

 
 
        August 31, 2007 
 
TO: Mayor, Commissioners and City Administrator 
 
From: Preston Owen, City Attorney & Treasurer 
 
Subj: Summary of the financing proposals 
 
The City has requested financing proposals from five different lending institutions in 
Mattoon.  Those proposals were identical with the exception of the interest rate charged 
by the institutions.  Below is the result of the proposals: 
 
 First Mid-Illinois Bank & Trust   4.54 % 
 Bank of America    4.66 % 
 The Bank     4.80 % 
 US Bank     5.46 % 
 The First National Bank   7.35 % 
 
A special ordinance has been placed on the agenda of the September 4, 2007 meeting to 
award the financing to First Mid-Illinois Bank & Trust. 
 



 

                    

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

 
SPECIAL ORDINANCE NO. 2007 - 1244 

 
AN ORDINANCE RATIFYING THE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT OF 

DAVID L. GRIFFITH FOR THE POSITION OF POLICE CHIEF 

  
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Mattoon as follows: 
 
Section 1.  The City Council hereby approves an Employment Agreement with David L. Griffith 
for the position of Police Chief, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
reference.  
 

Section 2. This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and approval 

by the City Council.  

 
Section 3. This ordinance shall be effective upon its approval as provided by law. 
 
Upon motion by ______________________, seconded by ________________________, 
adopted this    day of ___________________, 2007, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
NAYS (Names):  __________________________________________ 
ABSENT (Names): __________________________________________ 
 
Approved this ____ day of _________, 2007. 
 

__________________________________ 
      Charles E. White, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM:    
  
 
 
__________________________  ________________________________ 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney             
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on _________________________, 2007. 














